# TRUST DEED

OF

# ABL PENSION FUND

Dated: March 19, 2014

# BY AND BETWEEN

ABL ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

110

CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	1.1	NAME, REGISTERED ADDRESS, PLACE AND DATE OF REGISTRATION	4
	1,2	PARTICIPATING PARTIES	-4
	1.3	DECLARATION OF TRUST	4
	1.4	SUB-FUNDS	ń
3		GOVERNING LAW	on B
3		OPERATORS AND PRINCIPLES	6
	3.1	PENSION FUND MANAGER	6
	3.2	TRUSTEE	7
	3,3	DISTRIBUTOR/INVESTMENT FACILITATOR	7
	3.4	REGISTRAR	7
	3.5	AUDITORS	7
	3.6	LEGAL ADVISORS	- 8
4		CHARACTERISTICS OF THE PENSION FUND	9
	4.1	ELIGIBILITY	
	4,2	STRUCTURE OF PENSION FUND	
	4.3	APPLICATION PROCEDURES	0
	4.4	CONTRIBUTION PROCEDURES AND MINIMUM CONTRIBUTIONS	
	4.5	INDIVIDUAL PENSION ACCOUNT	-11
	4.0	WITHDRAWAL PROCEDURE BEFORE RETIREMENT	
	4.7	CHANGE OF PENSION FUND MANAGER PENSION FUND BY THE PARTICIPANT.	12
	4.8	REGISTER OF PARTICIPANTS	13
	4.9	RETIREMENT AGE.	14
	4.10	BENEFITS ON RETIREMENT	15
	4.11	WITHDRAWAL OF FUNDS BEFORE RETIREMENT	15
	4,12		
	4.13		17
	4,14		_17
	4.15	FREQUENCY OF VALUATION OF THE ASSETS AND DEALINGS	17
	4.16		_17
	4.17		
	4.18		
	4,19		18
5		FEES AND CHARGES	18
	5.1	FRONT END FEE OUT OF THE CONTRIBUTIONS	18
	5.2	REMUNERATION OF THE PENSION FUND MANAGER	_19
	5.3	REMUNERATION OF THE TRUSTLE	19
	5.4	OTHER FEES AND CHARGES PAYABLE OUT OF THE PROPERTY OF THE FUND.	10
6		INVESTMENT POLICY AND INVESTMENT & BORROWING RESTRICTIONS	. 20
	6.1	INVESTMENT OF FUND PROPERTY	20
	6.2	INVESTMENT POLICY OF ABL PENSION FUND AND ITS SUB-FUNDS	
	6.3	INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	21
	6.4	BORROWING RESTRICTIONS	21
7			
		STATEMENTS AND DECLARATIONS	22
	7.1	PARTICIPATING PARTIES	22
	7.2	PARTICIPATING PARTIES	22 22 22
	7.2	PARTICIPATING PARTIES OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER:	22 22 23
	7.2 7.3 7.4	PARTICIPATING PARTIES OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER: 1 IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS	22 22 24 24
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5	PARTICIPATING PARTIES  OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER.  RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER-  1 IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS	22 22 24 24 24
	7.2 7.3 7.4	PARTICIPATING PARTIES  OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER.  RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER:  1 IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS	22 22 24 24 25
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5	PARTICIPATING PARTIES OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER: 1 IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE	22 22 24 24 25 25 25
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6	PARTICIPATING PARTIES OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER: 1 IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT	22 24 24 25 25 25 25
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7	PARTICIPATING PARTIES OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER: 1 IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT	22 24 24 25 25 25 25
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8	PARTICIPATING PARTIES OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER: 1 IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT UNITS TO RANK PART PASSU	22 24 24 25 25 25 27 28
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9	PARTICIPATING PARTIES OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER: 1 IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT UNITS TO RANK PART PASSU PARTICIPANTS RANKING PART PASSU: TRUSTEE TO REPORT TO PARTICIPANTS	22 24 24 25 25 28 28 29 29
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10	PARTICIPATING PARTIES  OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER  RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER:  I IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS  RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER  OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE  RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTLE  DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT  UNITS TO RANK PART PASSU  PARTICIPANTS RANKING PART PASSU  TRUSTEE TO REPORT TO PARTICIPANTS	22 24 24 25 25 28 28 29 29
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10	PARTICIPATING PARTIES OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER: 1 IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTLE DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT UNITS TO RANK PART PASSU PARTICIPANTS RANKING PART PASSU: TRUSTEE TO REPORT TO PARTICIPANTS TRUST ARRANGEMENTS	22 22 24 24 25 25 27 28 29 29
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10 7.11 7.12	PARTICIPATING PARTIES OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER: 1 IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE. RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT UNITS TO RANK PART PASSU PARTICIPANTS RANKING PART PASSU TRUSTEE TO REPORT TO PARTICIPANTS. TRUST ARRANGEMENTS. BASE CURRENCY	22 22 24 24 25 25 27 28 28 29 29 29
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.10 7.11 7.12 7.13	PARTICIPATING PARTIES OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER: I IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT UNITS TO RANK PART PASSU PARTICIPANTS RANKING PARTICIPANTS TRUST ETO REPORT TO PARTICIPANTS TRUST ARRANGEMENTS BASE CURRENCY LIMITED LIABILITY LOSSES	222 222 244 255 277 288 299 39 31 31
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10 7.11 7.12 7.13 7.14	PARTICIPATING PARTIES OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER: I IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT UNITS TO RANK PART PASSU PARTICIPANTS RANKING PARTICIPANTS TRUST ETO REPORT TO PARTICIPANTS TRUST ARRANGEMENTS BASE CURRENCY LIMITED LIABILITY LOSSES	222 222 244 255 277 288 299 39 31 31
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.11 7.12 7.13 7.14 7.15	PARTICIPATING PARTIES  OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER  RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER  1 IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS  RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER  OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE  RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE  DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT  UNITS TO RANK PART PASSU  PARTICIPANTS RANKING PARTICIPANTS  TRUST ARRANGEMENTS  BASE CURRENCY  LIMITED LIABILITY  LOSSES  CLAIMS	22 22 24 24 25 27 28 28 29 29 31 31 31
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10 7.12 7.13 7.14 7.15 7.16	PARTICIPATING PARTIES  OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER  RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER:  I IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS  RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER  OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE  RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE  DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT  UNITS TO RANK PART PASSU  PARTICIPANTS RANKING PART PASSU:  TRUSTEE TO REPORT TO PARTICIPANTS  TRUST ARRANGEMENTS  BASE CURRENCY  LIMITED LIABILITY  LOSSES  CLAIMS  DEALING, SUSPENSION, AND DEFERRAL OF DEALING  TEMPORARY CHANGE IN THE MELHIOD OF DEALING OR SUSPENSION OF DEALING	222 222 244 244 255 25 27 28 29 29 31 31 31 31
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10 7.11 7.12 7.13 7.14 7.15	PARTICIPATING PARTIES  OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER  RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER:  I IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS  RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER  OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE  RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE  DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT  UNITS TO RANK PART PASSU  PARTICIPANTS RANKING PARTICIPANTS  TRUSTEE TO REPORT TO PARTICIPANTS  TRUST ARRANGEMENTS  BASE CURRENCY  LIMITED LIABILITY  LOSSES  CLAIMS  DEALING, SUSPENSION, AND DEFERRAL OF DEALING	222 222 244 244 255 25 27 28 29 29 31 31 31 31
	7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10 7.11 7.12 7.13 7.14 7.15 7.16	PARTICIPATING PARTIES  OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER  RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER:  I IMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS  RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER  OBLIGATIONS OF TRUSTEE  RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE  DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT  UNITS TO RANK PART PASSU  PARTICIPANTS RANKING PART PASSU:  TRUSTEE TO REPORT TO PARTICIPANTS  TRUST ARRANGEMENTS  BASE CURRENCY  LIMITED LIABILITY  LOSSES  CLAIMS  DEALING, SUSPENSION, AND DEFERRAL OF DEALING  TEMPORARY CHANGE IN THE MELHIOD OF DEALING OR SUSPENSION OF DEALING	22 22 24 24 25 27 28 29 29 31 31 31 31 31

8.5	QUEUE SYSTEM.	11
9	NO MONEY SHOULD BE PAID TO ANY INTERMEDIARY	33
10	DISTRIBUTION RESTRICTION POLICY	
11	TAXATION	
12	REPORTS AND ACCOUNTS	33
12.1	FUND ACCOUNTS	33
12.2	ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD.	3.3
12.3	PERIODIC REPORTS TO BE SENT TO PARTICIPANTS	33
12.4	PERIODIC REPORTS TO BE SENT TO COMMISSION	34
13	WARNINGS	34
14	TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS	34
15	LEGAL STATUS OF THE UNITS	34
16	DE-AUTHORIZATION, WINDING UP OF THE PENSION FUND	34
17	MODIFICATION OF THE CONSTITUTIVE DOCUMENTS	35
18	ARBITRATION IN CASE OF DISPUTES BETWEEN THE PENSION FUND MANAGER AND THETRUSTE	1.35
19	DISPUTES BETWEEN THE PARTICIPANTS AND THE PENSION FUND MANAGER	.36
20	GENERAL	36
21	CONFIDENTIALITY	36
22	DEFINITIONS	36



KEEL IQBAL STAMP VENDOL Road Bourton My bud

04 FEB 2014 11 M. ABC Asset

Artucht

m Addisse

Shakeel e's Tignalura TUSE FOR FREE WILL & DIVURCE PURPOSE)



THIS TRUST DEED is made and entered into at Karachi, on this 19th HARCH

E. CONSTITUTION OF THE PENSION FUND.

# NAME, REGISTERED ADDRESS, PLACE AND DATE OF REGISTRATION

The name of the Pension Fund is ABL Pension Fund. The registered address of the Pension Fund is 11-B Lalazar M.T. Khan Road Karachi. The Pension Fund has been constituted under this Trust Deed made and entered into at Karachi on this 19th Harcut 2014

# 1.2 PARTICIPATING PARTIES

- 1.2.1 This Trust Deed is made and entered into by and between:
  - A. ABL Asset Management Co. Ltd. a company incorporated under the Companies Ordinance. 1984, with its registered office at 11-B. Lalazar. M. T. Khan Road. Karachi (hereinafter called the "Pension Fund Manager", which expression shall, where the context so permits, include its successors-in-interest and assigns) of the one part; and
  - B. Central Depositary Company of Pakistan Limited ("CDC"), a company incorporated under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and registered with the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan as a Central Depositary Company, with its registered office at 99-18. Block 'B', S.M.C.H.S., Karachi (hereinafter called the "Trustee", which expression shall. where the context so permits, include its successors-in-interest and assigns) of the other part.

#### WHEREAS

The Pension Fund Manager is a Non-Banking Finance Company, licensed by the Commission under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules) and the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (hereinafter referred to as the "Regulations") to, inter-alia, carryout Asset Management Services and Investment Advisory Services under License No. AMCW 23/ABLAMCL AMS/10/2013 dated November 26, 2013 and License No. AMCW/22/ABLAMCL/IA-13/2013 dated November 26, 2013 respectively (attached hereto as Annexure "A" & "A-1") and registered by the Commission under the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 through certificate of registration no. No.08/SEC/PW/ABLAMC dated September 23, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as the "Rules" which expression shall include any amendments thereto and substitutions thereof and Regulations made or directives given by the Commission thereunder).



ARLEI IQHAL STAMP VENDOL Road Builder Mark 04 FEB 2014 m ADR. ABC ogn with Address and Re Shapeel

enra Stonature

UT USE FOR FREE WILL & DOVORCE PURPOSE

Suh-Registrar-II dar Town Karact

The Pension Fund Manager has appointed Central Depository Company Limited ("CDC") as 1.23 Trustee of the Pension Fund and CDC has accepted such appointment upon the terms and conditions herein contained and the tariff structure for trusteeship as per Annexure "B" attached

The Commission has approved the appointment of the CDC as Trustee, vide letter No. 9(1) SEC SCD / PW-ABLAMC-01/613 dated March 11, 2014 attached herewith as Annexure "C"

#### W THIS DEED WITNESSETH AND IT IS HEREBY AGREED:

#### 1.3 DECLARATION OF TRUST

- 1.3.1 A Pension Fund is hereby constituted and created as a Trust under the Trusts Act, 1882, under the name of "ABL Pension Fund (ABL-PF)". The Trustee is hereby nominated, constituted and appointed as the Trustee of the Pension Fund, including the Sub-Funds, Individual Pension Accounts. Allocation Schemes, Approved Income Payment Plans or any structure or plans as may be related to the said Pension Fund, and the Trustee hereby accepts such appointment. The Pension Fund Manager and the Trustee hereby declares and agree that:
  - The Trustee shall hold and stand possessed of all the Trust Property that may from time to time hereafter be vested in the Trustee upon trust as a collection of Sub-Funds, Individual Pension Accounts. Approved Income Payment Plans or any other structures or plans as may be related to the Pension Fund from time to time to provide the benefits under the Pension. Fund subject as provided in this Trust Deed and the Rules:
  - Each of the Suh-Funds shall be a cummon fund (collective investment scheme) whose property shall be held by the Trustee on trust for the benefit of all of the Participants holding Units of the Sub-Fund ranking part passa inter se according to the number of Units of the Sub-Fund held by such Participants, and such Participants shall rank part passu timer se relation to such benefit;
  - Balances in any Individual Pension Account and Approved Income Payment Plan shall be the property of the respective Participant:
  - d. Each Participant shall only be liable to the extent of his/her Contribution to the Pension. Fund and no further liability shall be imposed on him in respect of the Pension Fund;

- The Trust Property shall be invested from time to time by the Trustee in accordance with the Investment Policy and at the direction of the Pension Fund Manager; and
- f. The Pension Fund Manager shall manage, operate, and administer the Pension Fund (including Sub-Funds) strictly in accordance with the provisions and conditions contained in this Deed, the Rules, the guidelines and circulars issued by the Commission from time to time.
- 1.3.2 As soon as may be practicable, and after obtaining all applicable Approvals, the Pension Fund Manager shall open participation in the Pension Fund through offer of Units of Sub-Funds at NAV calculated in the manner prescribed under the Rules or as may be specified by the Commission from time to time to the eligible persons.
- 1.3.3 The Pension Fund Manager may from time to time, with the consent of the Trustee and under intimation to the Commission, frame operational procedures for conducting the business of the Trust or in respect of any necessary or other matter incidental thereto: provided that such procedures shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of this Deed, any Supplementary Trust Deeds and the Rules.
- 1.3.4 The affairs of the Pension Fund, including the Sub-Funds. Allocation Schemes, Individual Pension Accounts, Approved Income Payment Plans or any structure or plan related to the Pension Funds shall be conducted in compliance with the Rules.

#### 1.4 SUB-FUNDS

ABL Pension Fund will initially consist of the three Sub-Funds to be called "ABL-P1 Equity Sub-Fund" (the "Equity Sub-Fund"), "ABL-PF Debt Sub-Fund" (the "Debt Sub-Fund") and "ABL-P1 Money Market Sub-Fund" (the "Money Market Sub-Fund") (collectively the "Sub-Funds").

The Pension Fund Manager, after successfully managing the Equity, Debt and Money Market Sub-Funds, may with the approval of the Commission launch other Sub-Funds through a Supplementary Trust Deed and Supplementary. Offering Document to incorporate information for investments in other classes of assets, including securitized investment in real estate or in assets outside Pakistan. Any reference to the Sub-Funds in this Deed shall be construed to include any new Sub-Fund of the ABL Pension Fund.

- 1.4.1 Each Participant of the Pension Fund will in turn be the holder of Units of the Sub-Funds in proportions determined in accordance with the Allocation Scheme selected by the Participant or, in the absence of selection by the Participant, the Default Allocation Scheme selected for the Participant by the Pension Fund Manager as stated in Clause 4.3.1(f) or, in certain conditions prescribed under the Rules, of cash held in an appropriate Bank Account in the name of the Trustee.
- 1.4.2 The Units held by a Participant shall be non-tradable and non-transferable to another Participant person, except in the circumstances mentioned in the Rules.
- 1.4.3 Each Participant shall only be liable to pay the NAV of the Sub-Fund subscribed by him and no further liability shall be imposed on him in respect of any Sub-Fund's Units held by him. Sub-Fund's Units shall be issued only against receipt by the Trustee of full payment thereof.

#### GOVERNING LAW

This Deed shall be subject to and be governed by the Applicable Laws of Pakistan, including the Ordinance, the Voluntary Pension System (VPS) Rules 2005, the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, and shall be deemed for all purposes whatsoever to incorporate the provisions required to be contained in a trust deed by the Rules, and in the event of any conflict between this Trust Deed and the provisions of the Rules, the latter shall supersede and prevail over the provisions contained in this Trust Deed except where the Commission allows deviations under its power given by the Rules.

All the changes in applicable laws and regulations shall be deemed to be part of this Trust Deed irrespective of registration of the Supplementary Trust Deed

#### 3 OPERATORS AND PRINCIPLES

Following are the particulars of current operators and principles of the Fund

#### 3.1 PENSION FUND MANAGER

3.1.1 The Pension Fund Manager to the Pension Fund shall be:

ABL Asset Management Company Limited, Registered office:

11- B Lalazar, M. I. Khan Road Karachi-

K.

Com

Sub-Registrar-U

Jak.

Any change in the Registered Office address of the Pensonn Fund Manager shall be notified by the Pension Fund Manager to the Commission and the Treatee from time to time

1.1.2 The corporate profile of and up-to-date information regarding the Pension-Fund Manager as of the date of the Offering Document shall be given in the Offering Document.

As of the date of this Trust Deed, the Board of Directors of the Pension Fund Manager comprises of the following:

Name	Position	Other Director Ship
Sheikh Mukhtar Aluned	Chairman	Utrahim Libers Limited     Drahim Agencies (Pyr.) End     Allied Bank Limited.
Mr. Muhammad Waseem Muktuar	Director	Allied Bank Ltd     Draham Fibers Ltd     Draham Agencies (Pvt.) Ltd     Arabian See Country Club
Mr Tariq Mahmooid	Director	*
Mr. M. dawaid tabal	Directin	CFA Association of Polyton     Vyan United.
Mr. M. Shakeh Murad	Discontinui Discont	
Mr Kamran Nishai	Endependent Director	Muller & Chippe Pakesian (Private) Lanned     Information Systems Audii and Counted Associations     Kamela Chipper
Mr. Khawajii Muhammud Amas	Orector	Sub-Registrar-II     Mount Pung Association of Pakasian (M) J AP
Mr. Fand Aloned Knan	CEO	Minimal Primal Association of Pakastan (MI) (LAP)     C I A Association of Pakastan

#### 5.2 TRUSTEE

The Trustee for the Land is the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Lamited ("CDC"), a company incorporated in 1993 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and registered with the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SELP) as a Central Depositors Company of Pakistan Lamited, with its registered office at CDC House, 99-H. Block "B", S.M.C.H.5, main Shahrah-e-Laisal, Karachi, Pakistan (copy of Commission's approval for appointment of CDC as Trustee is annexed to this Deed as Annexure "C").

Any change in the Registered Office address of the Trustee shall be notified by the Trustee to the Commission and the Pension Fund Manager.

#### DISTRIBUTOR IN ESTMENT PACILITATOR

- The main Distributors of the Furnt shall be:
- a ABI Asset Management Co. Ltd. and its branches
- 7.3.2 The Pension Fund Manager may from time to time appoint or remove Distributors. Investment Facilitators and Sales Agents for the Fund under intimation to the Commission and the Trustee.

#### 11 REGISTRAR

The Management Company shall carry out the responsibility of maintaining investors records, issuing statements of accounts issuing Certificates representing Dates processing recomption responsible processing dividend payments and all other related and incidental activates. The Management Company shall not remove the records or Documents pertaining to the Schome from Pakistan to a place outside Pakistan without the prior written permission of the Commission and the Trustee. The Management Company shall perform the Junction of Registra Trussler Agent. However, at its discretion the Management Company may outsource the Registrar bunction Transfer Agent to a third party.

#### 35 AUDITORN

3.5.1 The first Auditors of the ABL Pensoon Fund shall be

A.F. Ferguson & Company, Chartered Accountants

(A member firm of Price Waterhause Coopers)

State Life Building No. 1-4.

LL Chundrigar Road.

Karnehi, Pakistan

whose ferm of office shall expire on the transmission of the first annual report and accounts but may be reappointed as may be specified in the Ruley from ting to time.

Jake-

- 3.5.2 After the date referred in Clause 3.5.1, the Pension Fund Manager shall with the consent of the Trustee appoint the Auditors, a firm of chartered accordants who shall be independent of the auditor of the Pension Fund Manager and the Trustee. The Pension Fund Manager may at any time, with the concurrence of the Trustee, and shall, if required by the Compussion, remove the Auditors and appoint another Auditor in its place. Furthermore the Pension Fand Manager shall ensure that the Auditors so appointed, including the first Auditors, are appointed from the panel of Auditors as prescribed by the Commission for this purpose
- 3.53 The Auditors shall hold office until transmission of the annual report and accounts. The Auditors shall be appointed for a term of one year reveept the first Auditors whose tirst term may be shorter than one year. Inti no Anditor shall be appointed for such number of consecutive terms as may be decided by the Commission from time at time. The following persons shall not qualify to be the Auditors of the Pension Fund:
  - A person who is or at any time during the preceding three years was a director, officer or employee of the Pension Fund Manager or the Trustee-
  - A person who is a parmet of, or in employment of a Unfector Officer, Employee or Connected Person of the Person Fund Manager or Trustee.
  - The spouse, brothers, sisters or lineal ascendants or descendants of a director, officer an employee of the Pension Fund Manager or Trustee Sub-Registrar.
  - A person who is indebted to the Pension Fund Manager or Trustee, and
  - A budy corporate:
  - A person who is not qualified to be appointed as auditor of a public company under the terms of Section 254 of the Ordinance shall not be appointed as the Auditor

Ada Town Haran

g. A person who is not qualified to be appointed as auditor under the terms of Seesiens 254(3) and 254(4) of the Ordinance shall not be appointed as the Auditor For the purposes of this Clause 3.4.5; references to "company" in those Sections that be construed as references to the Pension Fund Manager and the Trustee Section 254(5) of the Ordinance will apply to the Auditor images initiandic

Appointment of a partnership firm to be the Auditors shall be deemed to be the appointment of all persons who are partners in the firm from time to time

The Auditors shall have necess to the records, books, papers, accounts and southers of the Trust, whether kept at the office of the Pension band Manager. Trustee, Custodian, Registrat or elsewhere and shall be entitled to require from the Benston Fund Manager, the Trustee and their directors, officers and agents such information and explanations as considered necessary for the performance of audit

- The Auditor shall prepare an auditor exeport as required under the Rules, applicable love and Regulations, to be transmitted to the Commission and the Participants
- 3.5.7 The contents of the Auditors report shall be as required in the Rules. In case the Rules or any other applicable laws relating to appointment of Auditors of the Pension Funds are amended or substituted, the amended Rules or other applicable laws, as the case may be shall be deemed to become part of this Deed without the need to execute a Supplemental Trust Deed.
- 3.58 The Commission shall monitor general financial condition of the Pension Fund, and, at its discretion, may order special audit and appoint an auditor who shall not be the external auditor of the Peasion Fund, to carry out demiled scrutiny of the affairs of the Pousion Fund, provided that the Commission may, during the course of the scritting, pass such interim orders and give directions is if may deem appropriate. On receipt of the special audit report, the Commission may direct the Pension Fund Manager to do or to abatain from doing certain acts and issue directives for immediate compliance which shall be complied forthwith or take such other action as the Commission may deem fit

#### 3.6 LEGAL ADVISORS

The first legal advisor of the ABL Pension Find is:

#### M/s Bawaney & Partners

404. 4" Floor, Beaumont Plaza,

Beaumont Road.

Karachi, Pakutan

The Pension Fund Manager may, in consultation with the Trustee, replace the legal advisor or appoint a new legal adviser to a vacancy created by the reargnation or removal of the legal adviser The credentials of the new legal advisor shall be deemed, to become part of this Deed without the need to execute a Supplemental Trust Deed.

5 5 3.56

#### 4 CHARACTERISTICS OF THE PENSION FUND

#### 4.1 FLEGIBILITY

All individuals firstilling the obgibility criteria prescribed by the Commission from time to time under the Rules or any directive circular shall be oligible to contribute to the Pension Fund authorized under the Rules, directly as well as through their employers

#### 42 STRUCTURE OF PENSION FUNDS

- 4.2.1 The Pension Fund shall be in the form of a trust being made up of an equity sub-fund, a debt sub-fund and a money market sub-fund and such other sub-funds as may be allowed by the Commission. The Pension Fund shall have different Allocation Schemes that may be specified by the Commission from time to time. Details of Allocation Schemes currently being offered by the Pension Fund Manager shall be given in the Offering Document. When the Additional Allocation Schemes or Sub-Funds are faunched, the Pension Fund Manager shall amounce the same by Supplementary Offering Document and Trust Deed.
- 4.2.2 The Pension Fund established is perpetual in lite and shall not be wound up or terminated byway of liquidation.

#### 4.3 APPLICATION PROCEDURES

- 4.3.1 The procedure herein below is designed for paper based transactions. The Pension Fund Stract
  Manager may at a later date introduce electronic. Internet based options for the transactions
  - Participation in the Pension Fund shall be offered through Automized Branches Offices of Distributors and Investment Facilitators Sales Agents
  - by Before contributing, either himself or through the employer, to the Pension Fund, eligible person must open an account with the Pension Fund Manager, to be known as Individual Pension Account (the "IPA"), using the Prescribed Application Form.
  - c. Details of documents required to be submitted along with the Forms would be as per the Offering Document and as per the Rules. Regulations and Guidelines issued by the Commission from time to time.
  - d. The Pension Fund Manager shall make arrangements that all Forms shall be available and can be obtained from the offices of Pension Fund Manager. Investment Facilitators Sales-Agents, any authorize branches—offices of Distributor of the Pension Fund Manager or downloaded from the Pension Fund Manager's website or requested from the Pension Fund Manager by courier or through electronic means.
  - The Pension Fund Manager or the Distributor shall verify the particulars given in the Prescribed Application Form. The Investment facilitators, sales agents and distributors shall ensure that only those forms are received and forwarded to the Registrar for further processing which are complete in every respect.
  - E. The Participant shall have the option to select any one of the Allocation Schemes offered by the Pension Fund Manager. In the event of no choice made by the Participant, the Pension Fund Manager will have the right to allocate the Contributions to a default Allocation Scheme in light of the Prescribed Allocation Policy, as may be considered in the interest of the participants.
  - g. After opening an account or at the time of opening of account a Participant may by using the Form, make Contribution towards Pension Fund. Allocation of Contributions among Sub-Funds will be made as per the Allocation Scheme selected by the Participant and the Allocation Scheme once selected can be changed as per the Rules. Regulations and Circular issued from time to time. Initially the Allocation Scheme is intimated to the Pension Fund Manager through a Prescribed Application Form.
  - h. Application for Contribution shall be made by completing the Form and submitting it physically at electronically via designated website to the Authorized Branches of the Distributor of to the Pension Fund Manager together with the payment by cheque, bank draft, pay order, or online transfer as the case may be in favor of "CDC". Trustee ABI Pension Fund and crossed "Account Payce only". Insurance premiums, if any can also be collected with the said Contribution.
  - If subsequent to receipt of the application by the Distributor or Pension Fund Manager, but prior to issue of the Units, the application is found by the Registrar or the Distributor to be incomplete or metriced in any material manner, the Registrar or the Distributor will advise the applicant in writing to remove the discrepancy in the meanwhile the application will be held in abeyance up to lifteen days and in the event the discrepancy is not removed in the said fifteen days, the amount will be retunded out of collection account without any profit, interest or mark un

A A WAY OF THE STATE OF THE STA

Lune

- If the chaque has been retuned annual the application for Contribution will be rejucted
- k The Applicant must obtain a copy of the application or the receipt signed and stamped by an authorized officer of the Distributor. Investment Lacilitators Sales Agents acknowledging its receipt. However, in case of online Contributions, if any offered by the Pension Lund. Manager and with consent of trustee and approval by the Commission the online acknowledgement will be sufficient for the purpose of this place.
- If an application received pursuant to this Clause 4.3 is found by the Pennion Fund Manager-Registrar or the Distributor to be complete and correct in all material respects, the Pension Fund Manager. Registrar or the Distributor shall advise the applicant in writing of the opening of the applicant's Individual Pension Account with the Pension Fund Manager and shall also advise the applicant the number of such account.
- m. Subject to the State Bank of Pakistan's regulations or any other applicable law, the Pension Fund Manager will make arrangements, from time to time, for receiving the Form and payments from outside Pakistan from the Participants or Applicants who meet with the eligibility criteria and will disclose these arrangements through its website and its Distributors and agents outside Pakistan.
- The prescribed Forms can be lodged with any Distributor or Investment facilitators and agents. Sales Agent or authorized representatives of the Distributor can collect these Forms for onward submission to the Distributor or Pension Land Manager.

Sids-Rogistrar-II

#### 4.12 ALLOCATION ISSUE OF UNITS

- The Prescribed Application Form, complete in all respects including payment ton cleared Marares toods basis), received by the Pension Fund Manager or Distributor at its their Authorized Branches during Business Hours on any Dealing Day front any Participant shall be immediately credited to the Individual Pension Account of the Participant after deducting the Front-end Fees or Insurance premium if any Such intonia in the Individual Pension Account shall be used to purchase the Units of Sub-Funds of the Pension Fund us per the Altonation Scheme scienced by the Participant in the Net Asset Value notified by the Pension Fund Manager at the close of that Dealing Day for each Sub-Fund. Any Furni received after Business Huars will be transferred to the next Dealing Day.
- b. The Pension Fund Manager shall make reallocation of the Units between the Sub-Funds as per Rules and Offering Document to ensure that the allocation of Units of all the Participants are according to the Allocation Schemes selected by the Participants or where no selection has been made, according to the Delault Allocation Scheme.
- 4.3.3 Application procedure highlighted herein above may be altered by the Pension Fund Manager from time to time with the approval of the Commission. Such alterations shall be announced in by Supplemental Offering Documents and shall be deemed to correspondingly after the above provisions without the need to execute a Supplemental Trust Deed.

#### 44 CONTRIBUTION PROCEDURES AND MINIMUM CONTRIBUTIONS

- 4.4.1 Contributions from Lligible persons and or from their employers can be paid tump sum of in installments during any Vax Year Detailed procedures are mentioned in clause 4.3 above:
- 4.4.2 The Pension Fund Manager shall send an account statement as an acknowledgement of receipt of the Contribution to the Participant or the amployer, as the case may be, within 7Business Days of the receipt of Preservoed Application Form complete in all respects along with realization of payment, such account statement shall provide all the information as per Guidelines issued by the Commission in this regard.
- 4.4.3 Dispatch of the account statement as an acknowledgment through registered post, counterstall be sufficient to meet the needs of the above obligation. However, for contributions routed through the employers only the acknowledgement receipt of documents provided to the employers shall suffice for the above obligation.
- The Fund may be marketed in conjunction with group life or other Insurance schemes an any other scheme subject to approval of the Commission. These supplementary schemes would not be compulsory for all the Participants to join and the Trustee would be authorized to deduct the premiums only from the Contributions of those Participants who have opted to join such schemes. The Trustee would be making payment of deducted promium to the relevant historiance Company on the instruction of the Pension Fund Manager Only the net amount of Contributions after deduction of the frond end load and premium would form part of the Trust Property.

take

- Contribution procedure enunciated in clauses 4.1.1 to 4.4.1 shall be subject to afterations due to amendments to or substitutions of the Rules and or the lucome flax Ordinance, 2003. and or the Income Tax Ruley. Such afterations with prior approval of the Commission shall be announced in Supplementary Offering Documents and shall be deemed to correspondingly after the above provisions in this Deed without the need to execute a Supplementary Trust Deed.
- 4.4.0 The Pension Fund Manager may make strangements to accept contributions through electronic means upon satisfaction of the Trustee.

#### 447 Minimum Contributions

- The minimage amount of Contribution initially and subsequently into an Individual Pension Account shall be as stated in the Offering Document approved by the Commission. The Participant can make Contribution at any frequency into his her Individual Pension Account
- The Pension Fund Manager reserves the right to after the minimum amounts of Contribution, with the consent of the Trustee and under intimation to the Commission. and the same will be effective irrespective of registration of Supplementary Trust Deed.

#### 45 INDIVIDUAL PENSION ACCOUNT

- The Pension Fund Manager shall assign a unique I ustomer ID to the Individual 151 Account of each Participant. Such unique Individual Pension Account number shall be tax-11 issued in line with the criteria prescribed by the Commission.
- 4.5.7 The Contribution received from any participant on any Business Day by the Trustee strail immediately be credited to the Individual Pension Account of the respective Participant The amount in the Individual Pension Account shall be used for the purchase of the Units of different Sub-Funds in accordance with the Allocation Scheme selected by the Darticipant In the event of no Allocation Scheme being selected by any Participant, the Pension Fund Manager shall allocate the Contributions among the Various Sub-Funds in line with Default Allocation Scheme under the Prescribed Allocation Policy, as may be considered in the interest of the participants.
- 453 Contributions shall not be treated as having been received from or on behalf of any Participant unless they are received by the Prastee in cleared fainds and only the amount received in cleared frunk shall be fremen as the Contribution received
  - If any Contribution is received from or on behalf of any Participant by in cleared horos on a day which is not a Business Day it will be treated as having been received on the first following Business Day
    - The Participant shall have a right to change his bet Allocation Scheme as per the Rules and Circulars issued from time to time
    - The Pension Fund Manager shall make reallipeation of the Laurs between the Sub-Funds arper Rules and Offering Document to ensure that the aflocation of Units of all the Participants are according to the Allocation Scheme selected by the Participants of where no selection has been made, according to the Default Affocation Scheme, as may be considered in the interest of the participants
- 457 Individual Pension Account and the Limb shall not be subject to any field, pledge or encumbrance attachment in the execution of a decree, not shall it be chargeable or assignable, and any agreement to charge or assign an allowance shall be void and on the bankruptcy of a Participant, no sum shall pass to any trustee of person acting on behalf of his her creditors.
- 15.8 As part of the Form, each Participant shall provide an undertaking that he sha has no objection to the Prescribed Investment Policy and Prescribed Allocation Policy determined by the Commission and hextie is hilly aware of the risks associated with his her selection of Allocation Scheme.
- 15.9 In case of retirement of the Participant, the units available in the Individual Pension Account shall be en-cushed on the first Dealing Day falling on or immediately after the date of represent and such cash shall be deposited to a bank account maintained with a Bank traving minimum entity rating by a credit rating agency as specified in the Offering Document which shall cam profit at applicable market rates offered for deposits of auch amount and distation from the date of retirement fill the date at which retirement options are exercised.
- 4.5.10 In case of death before retirement, the units available in the Individual Pension Account shall be en-cashed on the Dealing Day on which intimation of the death of the Participant would be received in writing taking order the necessary documents as may be acceptable to

the PFM and/or trusteet and such each shall be deposited in a bank account maintained with a Bank having minimum entity rating by a credit rating agency as specified by the in the Offering Document which shall earn profit at applicable marker rates offered for deposits of such amount and duration from the date of intimation of death of the Participant till the date when the available options are exercised by the nominees survivors.

1.5.11 The criteria of allocation may be subject to changes and modifications from time to time in accordance with the change in the Prescribed Investment Policy and Prescribed Allocation Policy. All such changes shall be immuniced by a Supplementary Offering Documents with the consent of the Trustee and shall be deemed to become pure of this Trust Deed without the need to execute Supplementary. Trust Deeds.

#### 46 WITHDRAWAL PROCEDURE BEFORE RETIREMENT

- 4.6.1 On any Business Day and from time to tune before the date of retirement a Participant may redeem the whole or any part of the Units held by from in Interfact Individual Pension Account subject to the conditions laid down in the Income Tax Ordinance. 2001 (XLIX of 2001). The withdrawals may be through single or multiple payments and may be liable to withholding tax or tax penalty, and in case any sould liability exists the amount of withholding tax or tax penalty shall be destacted by the Pension Final Manager from the amount withdrawn and such deducted amount shall be paid to the relevant Authority.
- 4.6.2 Where the request made by a Participant under Clause 1.6.1 is for partial withdrawal from this her Individual Pension Account the request shall be given effect by redemption of Union-Registrar-II of Sub-Lunds in accordance with the Allocation Scheme last selected by the Participant's the Registrar-II.
- 4.6.3 If a Participant intends to withdraw funds from his her Individual Pension Account before the date of his her retirement, he she must give written notice of his her intention to the Pension Fund Manager in the Offering Document specifying therein whether the withdrawal is required of the whole or part of the Units held by him, and in the case of part withdrawal, the percentage of Units to be withdrawal.
- 4.6.4 The Pension Fund Manager shall ensure that the form referred to in Clause 6.6.3 shall be available from Authorized Branches of Distributors and such form shall. If completed by the Participant and submitted to any Authorized Branch of distributor, shall be taken to be the notice to the Pension Fund Manager referred to in that Clause
  - On any Business Day being not later than the sixth (6th) Business Day after the Participant submitted the completed form to any Authorized Branch under Chang 4.6.4, the Pension Fund Manager shall, subject to Chang 4.6.2 redeem the relevant number of Lints held by Participant it his her Individual Pension Account it Net Asset Value notified at close of the day on which the Participant submitted the completed form as aforesaid or, if such day is not a Business Day, on the first Business Day following that day and the proceeds tentized thereby shall be round to the Participant subject to Clause 4.6.1.

The provisions relating to williderawal of finids before the date of retirement set out in Clauses 4.6.1 to 1.6.5 may change due to amendments in or substitutions of the Rules and or the income Tax Ordinance. 2001. Any such changes shall be deemed to become part of this Trust Deed without the need to executing applicmental trust deeds.

#### CHANGE OF PENSION FUND MANAGER PENSION FUND BY THE PARTICIPANT

- 471 Participants shall be allowed to transfer the outre or part of his hor Individual Pensons. Account with the ABL-PF to another pension fund manager pension fund by completing the Forms. For this purpose the Units shall be en-easied at the Net Asset Value of each Sub-Fund notified at the date of transfer if a Dealing Disjoitherwise on the test Dealing Day.
- 4.7.2 No charge whatsoever called shall be deducted for impater of the individual Pension Account from ABI 49 to another pension fund manager/pension fund
- 4.7.3 The transfer of individual pension account from one Pension Fund Manager to another Pension Fund Manager or from one pension fund to another pension fund shall only take place once in a financial year.
- 4.7.4 The application for transfer of the account, specifying the name of the new pension (and manager pension fund and individual Pension Account number with the new pension fund manager must be sent by the Participant at least twenty one days before the effective date of the proposed change. The procedure for transfer at Individual Pension Account from the Pension Fund Manager pension fund to another pension fund manager pension fund shall be specified in the Offering Document.

Tate.

- 4.7.5 In the event the Commission cancels the registration of the Pension Fund Manager as a pension fund manager or discontinues the authorization of the Pension Fund, in each case in accordance with the Rules and other Applicable Laws, the Pension Fund Manager shill, assoon as practicably possible thereafter, transfer the Individual Pension Accounts of the Participants to pension funds managed by other pension fund managers as selected by the Participants or as directed by the Commission.
- 4.7.6 Above procedures will be followed both in case of transfer in and Transfer our of the ABI-Pension Fund. However, in case of transfer in ABI-PF, units shall only be issued upon realization of amount.
- 4.7.7 Policyholders having pension policies approved by the Congrussion under Section 63 of the Income. Tax. Ordinance. 2001. (XLIX. of 2001) and issued by Life futurance Takatol Companies before 30 have 2003 would also be eigible to redeem their Units and transfer the balance to an Individual Pension Account with the ABL Pension Fund, subject to the Trust Deed and the Rules. This may be subject to change due to any changes in or substitutions of the Income. Tax Ordinance, 2001 and shall be deemed to become part of this Deed without the need to escente any Supplementary. First Deed.
- 4078 On receiving a transfer application mentioned in clause 1.7.4 above, complete in all respects the Pension Fund Manager shall redeem the requested amount out of the balance available in Individual Pension Account of the Participant at the close of first Business Day that falls on in after the effective date of the proposed change and transfer the requested annount to the requested pension fund.

#### 4.8 REGISTER OF PARTICIPANTS

4.8.1 The Pension Fund Manager has the responsibility to maintain Participant's records and for this purpose it may, under infination to the Trustee appoint a Registrar, who would be responsible for maintaining Participants' records and providing related services. The Registrar shall perform the Registrar Functions and all othe related activities. The Pension Fund Manager shall ensure that the Registrar shall comply with all relevant provisions of this Deed and the Rules.

4.8.2 The Pension Fund Manager or the Registral as the case may be at their registered office shall maintain a Register of Participants and inform the Commission of the address where the register is kept. The Register shall also contain the information as prescribed by the Commission.

The Register shall be maintained in observable form and be password protected. The Pension Fund Manager would grant access to all the Participants to view the account information. The record keeping system shall contain the computerized transaction log which shall record Participant Account changes who made them and when they were made. The Registers and the Pension Fund Manager shall make sufficient provision for back up of the Register and its storage at an odf-site location.

- 4.8.4 The Pension Fund Manager shall ensure that the Registrar shall at all reasonable inner-during Business Hours give the Trustee and its representatives access to the Register and to all subsidiary documents and records or certified copies thereof and to inspect the same with or without notice and without any charge.
- 4.8.5 The Registrar shall, within three Dealing Days of receiving a written request from any Participant, post (or send by course or through electronic means) to such Participant dealist of such Participant's account in the Register. Such service shall be provided tree of charge to any Participant requesting so once in any financial year. The Pension Fund Manager may prescribe charges for servicing of any additional requests with the approval of the Commission. The details of charges if any shall be disclosed in the Offering Document.
- 4.8.6 The Register shall contain the information required by or under the Rules and shall be maintained in line with the Guidelines on record keeping issued by the Commission from time to time and shall, at the minimous contain the following information.
  - a. Registration number:
  - b. Individual Pension Account munber
  - Full names, father's name, residency status, CNIC tramber (in respect of Pakistani nationals), NICOP number (in respect of overseas Pakistanis), National Las Number (if applicable) and addresses of Participani;
  - d. If Participant is registered through employer the Individual Pension Account Number will be linked to an Employer Account Number that will contain the following:
    - i lemployer name.
    - ii Registered address

My can

Jake.

- in National Lay Sumber.
- is. Number of employees contributing in VPS; and
- \* Telephone number and e-mail aildress.
- e Date of birth and Sex of the Participant,
- f. Complete record of the amount and date of each Contributions paid by the Participant
- g. Complete record of the amount and date of each Contribution paid by the Employer-
- h Date and amount of incoming and outgoing transless
- The number of Sub-Fund Duits allocated and standing in the name of the Participant in the Individual Pension Account at Approved Income Payment Plan balances.
- The date on which the name of every Participant was entered in respect of the Sub-Fund Units standing in his/hor name.
- k. Tax Zakat status of the Participants.
- Nommeetsi
- m. Record of specimen signatures of the Participant and Non-inec(s):
  - Information on retirement of Participant and the payments made or to be made: "Ferres Cornes

Soh-Registrar-II

- o. Information on death and transfer of account to heirs, and
- P. Such other information as may be specified by the Commission in Pension Fund Minager may require.
- 4.8.7 The Register shall be conclusive evidence as to the Sub-Fund Units or Individual Pension Account or Approved Income Payment Plan Account balances held by each Participant
- 4.8.8 Any change of address or status of any Participant chall forthwith be notified in writing to the Registrar, who on being satisfied therewith and on compliance with such formalities shall update the Register accordingly.
  - The Participant or Inscher nomines, as the case may by shall be the only persons to be recognized by the Trustee the Pension Fund Manager and the Registrar as having any right title or interest in or to such Units and the Trustee, the Pension Fund Manager and the Registrar may recognize the Participant as the absolute owner thereof and shall not be bound by any notice to the contrary and Shall not be bound to take notice of or to see to the execution of any trust except where required by any court of competent jurisdiction.
  - Upon being satisfied that the contribution to the Personn Fund has been received in full from the successful applicant, the Registrar shall issue, within seven business days of such contribution, an acknowledgement along with the account statement that will constitute evidence of the number of Sub-Fund Units or Individual Personn Account or Approved Income Payment Plan Account balances registered in the name of the Participant and shall contain such other information as prescribed by the Commission from time to time However, for contributions routed through the employers only the acknowledgement receipt of documents provided to the employers shall suffice as an acknowledgement.
- 4.8.11 While making payment of the benefits, the Pension Fund Manager shall ensure that adequate description of reasons of payment i.e. retirement, disability death benefit to the beneficiary (ies) is mentioned in the Repister
- 4.8.12 The accessibility of data shall extend three years past the last amount paid to the Participant, subsequent persoon fund manager or to the fights of the Participant by the Pension form Manager

#### 49. RETIREMENT AGE.

- 4.9.1 The Participant may choose his her Retirement Age which would be between abity and seventy years or twenty-five years since the use of first contribution to a pension hand whichever is partier. Participant shall send a notice to the Pension Fund Manager at least thirty days before the chosen date of Retirement.
- 4.9.2 If a Participant suffers from any of the following disabilities, which render him unable to generate any income he she may if he she an elects, he treated as having reached the Retirement Age at the date of such disability and all relevant provisions shall apply accordingly, namely.

14

- a. loss of two or more limbs or loss of a hand and a foot
- b. loss of eyesight:
- e deafness in both our i.
- il. severe facial disfigurement.

My

CHANT

S III

4.8.9

- loss of speuch:
- paraplegia or hemplegia.
- langey: 0
- Ri . advance case of incurable disease, or
- wounds, injuries or any other diseases, etc. resulting in a disability due to which the Participant is unable to commucany work.
- 4.9.3 An assessment certificate from the medical board approved by the Commission and appointed by the Pension Fund Manager or my such procedure that the Commission has approved would be required to confirm any of the disability specified above

#### 410 BENEFITS ON RETIREMENT

- 4.10.1 At the date of retirement of the Participant all the Units of the Sub-Funds to his her credit... shall be redeemed at the Net Asset Value notified at close of the day of retirement, if such day is a Dealing. Business Day and otherwise on the next following Dealing. Business Day and the amount due shall be credited to he her individual Pension Account, which shall earn the applicable market rate of mark-up offered for deposits of such amount and duration. The Participant shall be given forms listing their choices under the Rules and shall their have the following options, namely:
  - Withdraw up to fifty per cent or such percentage of the amount from his her individual pension account as cash which is permissible under the Income Lax Unitrance. 2001(XL-X of 2001) and subject to payment of tax as rectaired thereinder-
  - Use the remaining amount to purchase an amounty from a Life Insurance Company of his her choice, such payment shall be made directly to the Life Insurance by the Trustee of the Fund on the instruction of the Personn Fund Manager, or
  - Enter into an agreement with the Person Fund Manager to withdraw from the remaining amount, monthly installments for up to filleen years following the date of retirement in acspecified in the Rules, according to an Income Payment Plan, approved by the Commission
  - the transfer of an individual meanic payment plan account from one Pension Fund Manager to another Pension Fund Manager or from one income payment plan to another income payment plan shall only take place once in a financial year and notice for the change, specifying the name of new Pension Fund Manager and the meome payment plan shall be sent by the participant at least twenty-one days before the effective date of the proposed change

At the expiry of the Approved Income Payment Plan according to clause (c) above, the Participant shall have option to use the outstanding balance in his her ladividual Pension Account to purchase an Approved Annuity Plan from a Life Insurance, of his her choice or buy an Approved meome payment plan for another term or to withdraw the amount from his her account subject to the conditions laid down in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

According to the rules, the animity purchased may be single life, joint or survivor life, level (with or without guarantee period), increasing investment linked and retail price index linked or with any additional features as may be offered by the Life insurance Companies

#### 4.11 WITHDRAWAL OF FUNDS BEFORE RETIREMENT

- 4.111 A Participant at any time before retirement shall be entitled to redeem the total or part of the Linits of the Sub-Eunds to his her credit in the Individual Pension Account subject to the conditions laid down in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (XLIX of 2001) and Offering Document, from time to fine, the withdrawals may be through single or multiple payments
- 4.11.2 Where the request is made by a Participant for partial withdrawal from the Individual Pension Account the Units in the Sub-Funds shall be redeemed on pro-rata basis in accordance with the Allocation Scheme, last selected by the Participant at the Net Asset Value at the close of the Dealing Day on which the request, complete in all respects was received. Atterwards: the Pension Fund Manager shall terward the request to the Trustee to make payment
- 4111 Withholding tax and lax penalty, if any, applicable to all such withdrawals shall be deducted by the Trustee by determined by the Pension Fund Manager and the same shall be deposited in the Government treasury
- Where the request made by a Participant under Clause 4.11.2 is for partial withdrawal from his/her Individual Pension Account the request shall be given effect to by redemption of Units of Sub-Funds in such proportion that the regulating balance in his ber Individual

- Pension Account is in accordance with the Allocation Scheme last selected by the Participant.
- 411.5 If a Participant intends to withdraw funds from his/her Individual Pension Account before the date of his her retirement, he she must give written notice of his her intention in the Pension Fund Manager in the form prescribed for such purpose by the Pension Fund Manager in the Offering Document, specifying therein whether the withdrawal is required. of the whole or part of the Units held by him her, and in the case of partial withdrawal, the percentage of Units to be withdrawn.
- 4116 The Pension Find Manager shall ensure that the form referred to in Clause 4.11.5 shall be available from Distributors and Persion Fund Manager and such form shall, if completed by the Participant and submitted to any Distributor of Persion Fund Manager, shall be taken to be the fortice to the Pension Fund Almager referred to in that Clause
- On any Business Day being not later than the sixth (6th) Business Day after the Participant, i 4.11.7 submitted the completed form to any Authorized Branch under Clause 4.115, the Pension Fund Manager shall, subject to Clause 4.11.2, redeem the relevant number of Units held by Participant in his her Individual Pension Account at Net Asset Value notified at close of the day on which the Participant submitted the completed form as aforesaid or, if such day is not a Business Day, on the first Business Day following that day and the proceeds realized. thereby shall be paid to the Participant subject to Clause 4.11.1.
- 4.118 The provisions relating to withdrawal of funds before the date of retirement set our in-Clauses 4.11.1 to 4.11.6 may change due to amendments in or substitutions of the Rulesand/or the Income Lax Ordinance, 2001. Any such changes that the deemed in become pair. of this Trust Deed without the need for executing supplemental trust deeds

### 4 12 BENEFITS ON DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT

- 4.17.1 he case of death of a Participant before the retirement age, all the Units of the Sub-Funds to his her credit shall be redeemed at the Net Asset Value multicd at alone of the aky of infimation of the Participant's death given in writing to the Pension Fund Manager by any nominee, executor, administrator or successor of the deceased Participant, complete in all respects and acceptable to the Pennion Fund Manager and or the Trustes - provided that such day is a Dealing. Business Day and otherwise on the next following Dealing. Business Day, the amount due shall be credited to his her Individual Pension Account. which shall earn the applicable market rate of profit offered for deposits of such amount and duration from the date of receipt of death certificate till the date when available options are exercised by the survivors. Death certificate issued by the exaging authority having jurisdiction over the matter and received by the Distributor on Dealing Day shall be considered as intimation of death to the Pension Final Manager. Detailed procedure for muniation and allocation thereafter shall be provided in the Offering Document and as parlaws enforced from time to time.
- 4.12.2 The total amount in the Individual Pension Account of the deseased Participant shall be divided among the nominated survivors according to the percentages specified in the Nomination Deed executed by the Participant and delivered to the Pension Fund Manager of as may be ordered by the court and each of the nonumated survivor shall then have the following options, tamels -
  - Withdraw in the share of the amount subject to the conditions laid down in the Income. Fax Ordinance 2001 (XLIX of 2001).
  - b. Transfer his her share of the amount into his her existing or new Individual Pension Account or Income Payment Plan Account to be opened with a Pension Fund Manager. according to the Rules.
  - Use his her share of the amount to purchase an Approved Annuity Plan on the her life from a Life Insurance Takaful Company only if the age of the survivor is fifty-five years or more; or
  - Use his her share of the amount to purchase a deterred Approved Annaty Plan on his her life from a Lafe Insurance/Takabil Company to commence at age fifty-five years or later

Such payment mentioned in clarife (c) and (d) above will be made directly by the Trustee of the Fund to the Life Insurance Company without ray deduction on the instruction of the Pension Fund. Manager. In the absence of Nomination Doed the Succession Certificate will prevail.

- Benefits paid to the survivores) nominated by a Participant under any group life cover taken not by the Participant as part of the Pension Fund shall be additional benefits payable to the nominated survivor(s)
- 4.12.4 The nominated survivors (if nominated by the Participant during his/her life time) and the executors or administrators of the deceased shall be the only persons recognized by the

Registrate. Trustee and the Pension Fund Manager as having tale to the Units of the Subbands. Provided however meither the Trustee, nor the Pension Fund Manager or the Registrar shall be liable or be involved in any manner whatsoever in any disputes among the nominated survivors and/or the rest of the legal heirs or legal representatives of the deceased Participant and shall have the discretion to require the abstention of succession certificate or any other mandaty from a court of appropriate jurisdiction or lawful authority Detailed procedure for intimation and allocation thereafter shall be provided in the differing Document and as per laws enforced from time to time.

#### 413 INSTRUCTIONS FROM PARTICIPANTS

All the instructions from a Participant or Institute manifold survivous.

All the instructions from a Participant or Institute manifolds survivous and duly signed by them. Compared to ABL Pension Fund shall be in writing and duly signed by them. Compared to ABL Pension Fund shall be in writing and duly signed by them.

#### THE METHOD OF DETERMINING NET ASSETS OF PENSION FUND

- da Tawn Ratars Net Assets of the Pension Fund will comprise of the Net Assets of all the Sub Funds. Individual Pension Account. Approved Income Payment Plan. Cash collection and disbursement account constituting the Pension band and any other assets in any other account related to the Pension Fund
- 4.14.2 Net Asset Value of the limt of each Sub-Fund shall be calculated on the basis of the Sub-Fund's total Net Asset divided by the number of outstanding Units in that Sub-Fund
- 4.14.3 NET ASSET VALUE OF SUB-PUNDS. Net asset value in relation to a Sub-Fund means the excess of total value of assets over total value of habilines of the Sub-Funds. The values of assets and liabilities will be computed in the manner specified in the Rules or as may be specified by the Commission from time to time

# 4.15 FREQUENCY OF VALUATION OF THE ASSETS AND DEALINGS

- 4.15.1 The valuation of Net Assets of the Sub Funds will be performed on all Dealing Days and any other day is determined by the Pension Fund Manager
- 4 15.2 Dealing in the Units of the Sub-Funds will be conducted on at least four Dealing Days per week to be announced by the Pension Fund Manager initially in Offering Document and subsequently in newspaper
- 4.15.3 For suspension or deferral in the dealing of times please refer clause 8 in the Trust Deed.

# UNIT PRICING AND THE CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH IT CAN CHANGE

- 4 16.1 Units of the Sub-Funds will be priced at Net Asset Vanne per Unit determined at the close of the Business Day as per centeria given in the Rules and amendment therein from time to
- 1.16.1 Unit pricing may change from time to time subject to change in Rules without any need to register the supplementary Trust Deed

#### 112 THE MODE OF ANNOUNCEMENT OF NET ASSET VALUE

The Net Asset Value of Units shall be imade available at Authorized Branches. Offices of the Distributor and at the offices of Pension Fund Manager and shall also be published in a leading daily newspaper with wide circulation in most of the cities in which the Pension Fund Manager have its distribution network and on the website of the Pension Fund Manager on the day following the day of valuation of the Net Assets.

#### 418 PAYMENT OF PROCEEDS

- The amount payable on withdrawnl shall be paid to the Participant on in accordance with this Trust Deed, to his her nominated survivors, executors, idministrators or successors by prossed chaque, pay order or transfer to their designated banker or an insurance Lakafull company as the case may be within six Business Days from the date of presentation of the duly completed application at the Authorized Braich: office of the Distribution Company or at the offices of Pension Fund Manager. The Pension Fund Manager stall unsure that while making payment adequate records in respect of reason of payment are maintained. At the written request of the Participant, the Personn Fund Minager may at its discretion: advice the Trustee to pay proceeds through some other mode of payorgm (other than cash).
- 4.18.2 In the event that the withdrawal or transfer request is incomplete in any respects, the Pension Fund Managet or the Registrar shall inform the Participant of the discrepancies within one week of the receipt of the request to provide the missing information. The payment shall not be made until all discrepancies have been removed

- 4.18.3 The amount payable on transfer shall be paid on behalf of the Participant to the requested pension fund within six this mess Pays from the date of presentation of the daty completed application. In the even transfer requests on any day exceed 10°, of the ABL Pension Fund, the transfer or withdrawal requests so in excess may be deferred in occurdance with the procedure set out in Clause 8 of this Trust Deed.
- 4.18.4 The receipt of the Participant or banking documents showing transfer to the Participant's insurance Tukaful company or another pension (und as the case may be or proof of issue of a cheque and mail to the Participants address for any moneys payable in respect at the Individual Pension Account shall be a good discharge to the Trustee and the Pension Fund Manager
- 4.18.5 The method for payment of proceeds given in 4.18.1 to 4.18.2 shall be subject to change due to any changes prescribed by the Commussion under the Rules and shall be decimed to become pair of this Deed without the need to execute any Supplemental Trust Deed.

# 4.19 WITHHOLDING TAX AND TAX PENALTY

The Trustee on the advice of the Pension Land Manager shall withhold the tax on payments to the Participants, nominees in successors as the taxe may be applicable according to the Income Lax Ordinance, 2001 (XL X of 2001) inclining any amendments and in substitutions thereof and deposit the same in the Government treasure.

#### 5 FEES AND CHARGES

5.1.1

All the following fees and charges are subject to change with prior approval of Commission without the last order this Trust Deed. The full disclosure of the fee and charges shall be provided in the Offering Document of the Pension Lind.

#### FRONT END FEE OUT OF THE CONTRIBUTIONS

The Pension Fund Manager was charge tront-end Fee up to a maximum of Ph on Contributions to the Find unless such contributions are exempt from a Front-end Fee as provided in the Rules and this Trust Deed

The following contributions are exempt from Front end bee:

- Incoming transfer of the Individual Pension Account from office pension fund manager to ABL Pension Fund;
- Incoming frankler from peasion policies approved by the Commission under section 63 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and usued by Life Insurance Companies before 30th June2005; or
- Such other contributions transfers as may be declared by the Commission from time to time.
- 5.1.3 The remuteration of Distributors and Investment Facilitator. Sales Agents shall be paid from any Front-end Fee received by the Trustee and or may be paid by the Pension Fund Manager when the Trustee pays the Front-end Fee to the Pension Fund Manager for onward payments to Distributors or Investment Facilitator. Sales Agents. Alternatively, the Trustee may pay the same directly to the Histoributors or Investment Facilitator. Sales Agents upon instructions of Pension Fund Manager, and no charges shall be made agantst the Fund Property in this respect. If the Front-end Fee received by the Fristee is insufficient to pay the remaineration of the Distributors and Investment Facilitator. Sales Agents the Pension Fund Manager shall pay the amount necessary to pay in full such remaineration.
- 5.1.4 Payments mentioned in Chance 5.1.2 above shall be paule by the Trustee to the Distribution Companies. Investment Incititators, Sales Agents and the Pension Fund Manager or as the case may be, by the Pension Fund Manager to the Trustee, on monthly basis in arrears within thirty days following the end of the calendar month.
- 3.15 Any Distributor or Investment Facilitator Sales Agents, whether in Pakistan or overacas shall not receive any amount of Contributions to his her own account (so he she will not be able to deduct any distribution fee on his her own). I very cheque demand draft instrument shall be in the name of the Trustee and then the Trustee shall, either directly or through the Pension Ford Manager, term the commission to the Describator or Investment Facilitator Sales Agents as the case may be.
  - The Pension Fund Manager at its sole discretion, may choose to reduce or altogether ways the Front-end Fee to any Participant or employer. Once the Pension Fund Manager has made an exception to reduce or waive the Front-end Fee for a contribution accepted that contribution without imposing a Front-end Fee, the Pension Fund Manager may not later recharge that Front-end Fee However, the shadishin by a Pension Fund Manager to reduce or waive a Front-end Fee for one Participant on fay one contribution of a single Participant

Stalle.

5.1.6

My - CA

does not obligate the Pension Fund Manager to reduce or waive the From-end Fee for other Participants, contributions or for future contributions of the same Participant.

#### 52 REMUNERATION OF THE PENSION FUND MANAGER

- 5.2.1 The Pension Fund Manager shall be entitled to remuneration for its services out of the Trust Property by way of an annual management for not oxceeding 1.5%, of the Net Assets of each Sub-Funds calculated during the year for deformining the prices of the units of the Sub-Funds.
- 5.2.2 The remuneration due to the Pension Fund Manager shall be accrued on daily basis and paid on monthly basis; within thirty (30) Business Days after the close of each monthly provided that the Pension Fund Manager may from time to time draw in advance out of the accrued remuneration a sum that the Trustee shall consider responsible.
- 5.2.3 Pension Fund Manager shall not make any charge against the Participants or against the Fund Property for its services or for its expenses, except such expenses as are expressly authorized under the provisions of the Rules and the Trust Deed to be payable out of Fund Property
  5.3.3.
- In consideration of the foregoing and save as aftersand and as provided the Pension Pand Manager shall be responsible for the payment of all exportes incurred by the Pension Fund Manager from time to time in connection with its duties as Pension Fund Manager of the Trust. The Pension Fund Manager shall also bear all expenditures in respect of assecretural and office space and professional management, including all accounting and administrative services provided in accordance with the provision of the Trust Deed, in the event that a Pension Fund Manager erroncously makes an incorrect charge, the Pension Fund Manager shall immediately notify the Trustee and the Commission and green the incorrectly charged amount to the respective Sub-Lunds, at its own expense.
- 5.2.5 The remaineration shall begin to accrue from the date of payment in full of the Saed Capital. In respect of any period other than a full year, such remaineration shall be produced on the basis of the actual number of days for which such remaineration has accrued in the Accounting Period concerned.

#### REMUNERATION OF THE TRUSTLE

- The Trustee shall be entitled to a morphly remineration out of the Fund Property based on an annual tariff of charges annexed hereto (Appexire "W"), which shall be applied to the average daily Net Assets of the Pension Fund during such calendar month.
- 5.3.2 Such remuneration shall be paid to the Transe in arreass within fiftuen Business Days after the end of each catendar month.
- 5.3.5 The Trustee shall bear all expenditures in respect of its secretarial and office space and professional numagement, in accordance with the provisions of this Deed.
- 5.33f The remuneration shall begin to accrue from the date of payment in full of the Seed Capital units subscribed by the Seed Investors. For any period other than a full calendar month such remuneration will be prorated on the basis of the actual number of days for which such remuneration has accrued for the total number of days in the calendar month concerned.
- 5.3.5 In consideration of the foregoing and save as aforesaid the Trustee shall be responsible for the payment of all expenses incurred by the Trustee from time to time in connection with their duties as Trustee of the Trust. The Trustee shall not make any charge against the Participants or against the Trust Property or against the Distribution Account for their services or for their expenses, except such expenses as are expressly andiorized to be paid out of the Trust Property under the provisions of the Rules and this Deed

# 5.4 OTHER FEES AND CHARGES PAYABLE OUT OF THE PROPERTY OF THE FUND

- 5.4.1 Other fees and charges to be charged to the 1 and shall include
  - Brokerage and Transaction Costs related to investing and dismvesting of the Fund-Property
  - b. Legal costs incurred in protecting or enhancing the interests of the Fund or the collective interest of the Participants subject to approval of the Trustee. This may also include the cost incurred for registration of assets at the Pension Fund or the name of the Trustee.
  - c. Bank charges and barrowing financial costs provides that the charges payable to any Bank or Fourpoid Institution against horizontage on account of the Trust as permissible under the rules, shall not be higher than the normal prevailing bank charges or normal market rates.
  - d. Auditors' Fees and expenses

My my

Egh.

Takes

- 8. Attend fee payable to the Commission under Rule 30 of the Rules but not any times, charges, sanctions or penalties asserted by the Commission against the Penson Fund Manager or any of its related companies.
- Preliminary expenses including Formation Costs but excluding any costs relating to marketing, sales, promotion education, communication or any form of advertisement costs shall be subject to a limit of PKR 250,000 - or 0.5% of the ford Seed Capital, whichever is less. This cost shall be paid to the Pension Fund Manager within the first three months of complete recespt of Seed Capital and amortized over a period of three years.
- g Taxes applicable to the Trust on its income, turnover, assets in otherwise if any, but not fines, charges, vanctions or penalties asserted by the Commission against the Pension Fund Manager or any or its related companies in relation to the Pension Fund; and
- h Custody charges including Central Depositors Company of Pakistan charges. If any
- 5.4.2 The Pension Land Manager's Remoneration and the Trustee's Remoneration shall be charged to the Sub-Funds in proportion to the Net Assets of the pertinent Sub-Fund Formation Costs shall be divided equally among all the Sub-Funds Any admissible expense identifiable to a specific Sub-Fund shall be charged to that Sub-Fund Common expenses like Legal Costs. Audit fees. Annual Fees payable to the Commission and other Costs and Charges perturbing to the Pension Fund as a whole shall be divided equally among the Sub-Funds. Any other charges as may be allowed by Commission from time to time shall also be charged as per the above criteria.

# 6 INVESTMENT POLICY AND INVESTMENT & BORROWING RESTRICTIONS

50h Registrardf

#### 6.1 INVESTMENT OF FUND PROPERTY:

- The Fund Property shall unitially be constituted out of the proceeds (the "Seed Capital") of the Sub-Fund Finits (Core Units) issued to initial investors (the "Seed Capital Investors")
- 6.1.2 The aggregate proceeds of all Contributions including Insurance premium if any to the Fund from time to time shall be collected in the collection account and transmitted to the respective Sub-Fund accounts after deducting Front-end Fees and Insurance premium if any in accordance with the instructions given by the Pensium Fund Manager from time to time. The net proceeds after deduction of From-end Fee and Insurance premium, if any shall constitute Pensium Fund Property vested in the Sub-Funds of the Poisson Fund. Front-end Fee and Insurance premium will be transmitted in the name of Poisson Fund Manager and specified Insurance Company respectively.
  - The Trustee shall take the Fund Property into its custody in under its commod either directly or through the Custodian and hold it in trust for the benefit of the Participants in accordance with the provisions of the Rules and this Deed. The Fund Property shall always be kept asseparate property and shall not be applied to any purpose accounted with the Fund. The Fund Property of each Sub-Fund shall be kept and accounted separately and shall not be commingled. All registerable investments shall be registered in the name of the Trustee and shall remain so registered until disposed of pursuant to the provisions of this Deed. All expenses incarred by the Trustee in offecting such registration shall be payable out of the Fund Property.
- All cash forming part of the Triest Property shall be deposited by the Trustee in separate account(s) to be opened in the name of the Trustee, as a nonlinea of the Trust with Scheduled Commercial Bertists; having at feast manifolding rating as mentioned in the Offering Document approved by the Pension Fund Manager or as specified by the Commission from time to unit. Such Bankts) shall be required to allow profit thereon in accordance with the rules prescribed by such Bonkts) for sharing of profits or mark up on deposits trainfainted in such account or under any other arrangement approved by the Pension Fund Manager.
- Save as herein expressly provided, the Fund Property of each Sub-Fund shall always be kept as separate properly free from any morngages charges hears or any other encumbrances whatsoever and the Trustee, the Pension Fund Manager or a Custodian shall not, except for the purpose of the Fund, create or purport to create any mortgages, charges, liens or any other encumbrances whatsoever to accure any loan, guarantee, or any other obligation, actual or contingent, on the Lund Property.
- 6.1.6 Remuneration of the Pension Fund Manager Remuneration of the Trustee: Brokerage and Transaction Costs related to investing and distrivesting of the Trust Property, Logal costs incurred in protecting the interests of the ABI. Pension Fund or the collective interest of the Participants; bank charges and other costs including. Audit (see Formation Costs, Annual Fee payable to the Commission, shall be payable output the Trust Property Provided further

that the Entraction Costs including expenditure incurred in connection with the establishment and authorization of the ABL Pension Fund shall also be home by the Pension Fund paid to the Pension Fund Manager within the first three months of complete receipt of proceeds against Seed Capital Units subscribed by the Seed Investors and amortize over a period of three years.

#### 617 BANK ACCOUNTS

- a) The Tripdee will maintain Bank Accounts for the Pension Fund in Banks having a minimum rating as mentioned in the Offering Document or as specified by the Commission from time to time, approved by the Pension Fund Manager and their branches as specified by the Pension Fund Manager from time to time. These (wink Accounts would be littled as follows:
- by Tor collection of Contribution "CDC-Trustee Attl. Pension Fund"
- c) For withdrawal of accumulated balance "CDL-Trastee ABL Pension Fund Redemption Account"
- d) Others separately for each Sub-Fund "CDC-Trustee ABI Pension Fund (Lapiny Sub-Fund. Debt Sub-Fund. Minney Market Sub-Fund and other Sub-Fund approved by the Commission). Account"
- The amounts received from the Seed Capital Investors would be deposited in the bank account titled CDC-1 rustee ABL Pension Fund for onwards allocation to the individual Bank. Accounts of the respective Sub-Funds. The Pension Fund Manager may start investment of this amount as per the Prescribed investment Policy as seen as the latal Seed Capital is received.

# 62 INVESTMENT POLICY OF ARL PENSION FUND AND ITS SUB-FUNDS

- Pension Fund Miniager shall make investment of the ABL Pension Fund in a transpacent of three Subefficacious, prodon and sound manner. Pension Fund will initially consist of three SubFunds. Equity. Debt and Money Market sub-fund.
- All the investments of the ABI Pension Fund shall be strictly in compliance with the Prescribed Investment Policy (subject to relaxations if any granted by the Commission from time to time). Subject to prior approval of the Commission, the Sub-Fund may seek to invest in foreign securities, listed or otherwise and trackel outside Pakistan on such terms. Guidelines and directions as may be prescribed by the Commission and the State Bank of Pakistan from time to time.

### AVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

- 6.3.) The Fund Property shall be subject to such exposure limits as are provided in the Rules, subject to relaxations granted by the Commission from time to time.
- 6.3.2 The Fund shall not ut any time:
  - a) Finter into a short sale transaction in any security, whether listed or unlisted;
  - Purchase from or sell any security to any Connected Person.
  - e) Finter into transactions with any single broker who is a Connected Person that account for ten per cent or more of the Fund's brokerage commission in any one Accounting Year of the Fund.
  - d) Lend, assume guarantee, endorse or otherwise become directly or contingently hable for or in connection with any obligation of indebtedness of any person. However, Investment in sale and repurchase transactions involving Government Securities or such listed securities which are regulated by the Stock Exchanges shall not be attracted by this role under the risk management parameters given in above;
  - e) Invest in any security of a company if any director or officer of the Pension Fund Manager or their lineal ascendant or descendants owns more than five per cent of the total nominal amount of the securities issued, or collectively the directors and officers of the Pension Fund Manager own more than ten per cent of those securities.
  - D Except where it is necessary to protect its Investment, seek to acquire a controlling interest in any enterprise at which it has invested in has any other interest, which would give it primary responsibility for management
  - 6.3.3 The investment of properties of the Sub-Funds shall be subject to the restrictions/limitations prescribed by the Commission vide its Prescribed investment Policy from time to time.

# BORROWING RESTRICTIONS

Kw.

Cthrist

- 6.4.1 Subject to any statutory requirements for the time being in force and to the terms and conditions began contained, the Trustee may at any time at the request of the Person Fund Manager concur with the Pension Fund Manager in making and varying arrangement, with Banks or Financial Justinations for borrowing by the Trustee for the account of the Pension Fund: provided that the borrowing shall not be resorted to, except for meeting the withdrawal requests or transfer of funds to other Pension Fund Managers.
- Borrowing shall not be resorted to except for nacting withdrawal respects or transfer of fiinds to other Pension Fund Managers and such borrowing shall not exceed the lumin-provided in the Rules at the time of borrowing. However, if subsequent to such borrowing the Net Assets are reduced as a result of depreciation in the market value of the Fund Property or satisfaceal the Trustee or Pension Fund Manager will not be under any obligation to reduce such borrowings unless the expiry of borrowing facility. Such borrowing shall be repayable within a period of monety days.
- borrowing shall be repayable within a period of small prevailing on account of the charges payable to any Bank or I maneral Institution against borrowings on account of the Trust as permissible above shall not be biglier than the normal prevailing bank eligible egistral or normal market rates for similar service and or facility
- 6.4.4 The maximum borrowing for the account at the Trust shall not exceed fitteen per cent of the total Net Asset Value of the Pension Fund and the maximum borrowing for the account of any Sub-Fund shall not exceed fifteen per cent of the total NetAsset Value of such Sub-Fund or such other limit as may be provided in the Rules. If subsequent to such borrowing, the Net Assets are reduced as a result of depreciation in the market value of the Fund Property or withdrawal or funds, the Pension Fund Manager or the Trustee shall not be under any obligation to reduce such borrowing.
- 6.4.5 Neither the Trustee, nor the Pension Fund Manager shall be required to issue any guarantee or provide security over their own assets for securing such borrowings from Banks and Financial Institutions. The Trustee or the Pension Fund Manager shall not in any manner be hable in their personal capacities for repayment of such loans or advances.
- 10.4.6 For the purposes of securing any such borrowing the Frustee may upon instruction of the Pension Fund Manager mortgage, charge in pledge to any number all or any part of the Fund Property provided that the aggregate amount secured by such mortgage, charge or pledge shall not exceed the firms purified under the Rules.
- 6.4.7 Neither the Trustee nor the Pension Fund Managor shall mear any fiability by reason of any loss to the Trust or any loss that a Participant may suffer by reason of any depletion in the Net Asset Value that may tesuit from any horrowing arrangement made in accordance with the Trust Deed.

#### STATEMENTS AND DECLARATIONS

#### PARTICIPATING PARTIES

ABL Asset Management Company Ltd., an unfisted public limited company incorporated under the Companies Ordinance. 1984 therematter called the "Pensson Lund Manager" which expression where the context so permits shall include its successors in interest and assigns), registered as a Non-Banking Unionee Company with a license to perform Asset Management and investment Advisory Services under the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Roles, 2003 (herematter referred to methe "NRLC Rolles") and registered as a Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension System Roles, 2005, having its registered office at 11-B. Lalazat, M. F. Khan Road, Karachi, of One Pari

AND Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC), a public limited company incorporated under the Companies Ordinance, 1981, and regishered to act to central depository company under Rule 4(3) of the Central Depository Companies (Establishment & Regulations) Rules, 1996, having its Registered Office at UDC House 99-B Black BS.M.C.H.S. Main Shahrah-e-Laisal, Karachi, (heromotier called the "Trustee" which capression where the centest so permits, shall include its successors in interest and accounts of the Other Part.

### 12 OBLIGATIONS OF PENSION FUND MANAGER

- 12.1 The Pension Fund Manager shall also act as the Investment Adviser of the Fund-
- 722 The Pension Fund Manager shall -
- a be obliged to manage and invest the assets of the Pension Fond, according to the provisions of the deed and the Rules, in the best interest of the Participants in good faith and to the best of its ability and without gaining any undue advantage for itself or any of its related parties or its officers.

- be responsible for the dets and smissions of all persons to whom it may delegate any of its functions as Pension Fund Mazager, however designated, as if they were its own acts and omission;
- c account to the Trustee for any loss in value of the assets of the Pension Fund where such lossbus been caused by its gross negligence, reaches or willful act or omission.
- and maintain at its principal office, proper accounts and records of the Pension Fund and each Sub-Fund and each Individual Pension Account to enable a complete and accurate view to be formed of the assets and habilities and the moome and expenditure of the Pension Fund and the Sub-Funds, all transactions for the account of the Pension Fund and Contributions received by the Pension Fund and withdrawark by the Participants including detail of the Front-end Fee deducted from the Contributions and the withholding tax deducted at source and transfer or receipt of balances in the Individual Pension Accounts of the Participants to or from other pension fund managers. The Pension Fund Manager shall provide and replicate these records to with the Trustee at regular intervals to be decided by the Trustee. The extent of records to be provided to the Trustee shall be mutually decided with the Pension Fund Manager or as specified by the Commission.
- e prepare and transmit an annual report, together with a copy of the balance sheet and meonic and expenditure account and the auditor's report of the Pension Fund and each Sub-Fund within four months of closing of the Accounting Period to the Commission. Trustee but the Participants, and the balance sheet and meonic and expenditure account shall comply with requirements as set out in Schedule Lio-the Rules.
- within one month of the close of the first and mird quarter of its year of account of the Fund and within two months of the close of second quarter prepare and transmit to the Participants. Trustee and the Commission a balance sheet as at the end of that quarter and a profit and loss account for that quarter, whether makind or otherwise, of the Pension Fund and the balance sheet and income and expenditure account shall comply with requirements as set out in Schedule I. The companies may, with the prior approval of the Commission, post the said quarterly accounts on their webside.
- g. The Pension Fund Manager shall maintain a Register of Participants of the ABi. Pension Fund and inform the Commission of the address where the register is kept. For this purpose it may appoint a Registrar, who is responsible for maintaining Participants' records and providing related services. The Registrar shall carry out the responsibility of maintaining Participants' records, issuing statements of account, receipts for contribution, processing withdrawals and all other related activities.

appoint from the fist of auditors prescribed by the Commission from time to time, with the consent of the Trustee, at the establishment of the Pension Fund and apon any vacancy, an Auditor independent at the auditor of the Pension I and Manager and the Trustee and such Auditor shall not be appointed for more than three consecutive years.

The Pension Fund Manager shall furnish to the Commission within one month of the close of the Accounting. Year. (i) particulars of the personnel (executive research and other)managing the ABL Pension Fund(ii) total number of Participants (iii) total value of all Individual Pension Accounts (iv) total Contributions for the previous year and (v) such other information that may be prescribed by the Commission from one to time.

- send an account statement as at the 30th June and the 31st Dycember each year within flurly days after the end of each date, to individual Participants confirming the aggregated transactions for that six month period and indicating the type(s) of Contributions received contribution from the employer of the Participant, meaning transfers from other peasing fund manager(s) or meaning transfers from Provident Fund or transfer from a deceased person's account of other types of benefit distursements: retirement, pre-retirement payment along with the taxes withheld death benefit payment or transfer to heirs outgoing transfer to other pension final manager(s), premium deducted out of the Contributions on account of supplementary whomes, withdrawals or other. The statements shall include details of the number of Units allocated and held, the current valuation of the Units and such other intermation as may be specified by the Commission, free of charge Additionally, the Participant shall be entitled to receive any statement in respect of his her account, at any time on written application. Such information may also be posted on the website or entailed and furnished electronically subject to the prior approval of Commission.
- The Pension Fund Manager under numerican to the Commission and the Trustee. from time to time appoint, remove or replace one or more Distribution Company (ies) for carrying the Distribution Function at one or more breations, on terms and conditions to be incorporated in the Distribution Agreement to be entered into between the Distribution Company and the Pension Fund Manager

Jue.

- I furnish to the Commission a copy of its annual report together with copies of the balance sheet, profit and loss account, the directors report and the auditors report within one mouth of its annual general meeting and shall furnish its half yearly report to the Commission within two months of close of its half year.
- in send any other statement or certificate to the Participants which may be necessary under these Rules.
- The Pension Fund Manager shall not be under any liability except such liability as may be expressly assumed by it under the Roles and the Deed not shall the Pension Fund Manager (save as herein otherwise provided) be liable for any act or omission of the Trustee or for anything except its own negligence, reckless or willful breach of duty hereinder. If for any reason it becomes impossible or impracticable to carry out the provisions of this Trust Deed the Pension Fund Manager shall per be under any liability therefore or thereby and it shall not incur any liability by reason of any error of law or any matter or thing done or suffered or omitted to be done in good tanh hereinider.

#### 11 RESTRICTIONS FOR PENSION FUND MANAGER-

The Pension Fund Manager on behalf of the Fund shall not -

- a merge with acquire or take over management of any other pension find unless a paragraphic that the prior approval of the Commission in writing to the scheme of such merger acquisition Karage takeover:
- b, pledge any or the securities hold or beneficially owned by the Pension Fund except for the benefit of the Pension Fund subject to prior approved of the Commission.
- c accept deposits from another pension haid.
- d. make a loan or advance money to any person except in connection with the normal business of the Pension Fund.
- participate in a joint account with others in any transaction
- I apply any part of its assets to real estate, unless provided in the Rules or approved by Commission provided that the Pension Fund Manager may purchase real estate for its own use out of its own shareholders, fund
- make any investment with the purpose of having the effect of vesting the management or control in the Pension Fund, and
  - employ as a broker, directly or indirectly, any of its director, officer or employee or a member of a family of such person which shall include spouse, parents, children, brothers and interand enter into transactions with any connected broker, which shall equal or exceed ten per centor more of the brokerage or commission paid by the Pension Fanid in any one accounting year.

Provided that the Commission may, in each case on ments, permit the ten percent to be exceeded if the connected broker offers advantages to the Pension Fund not available absorbers, and

Finter into a short safe (ransacation in any Security

#### 7.1 LIMITATIONS AND PROHIBITIONS

- Pension Fund Manager on benait of the Pension Fund shall not tend assume guarantee, endorse or otherwise become directly or contingently lable for or in connection with any obligation or indebtedness of any person. Provided that investment in purchase and resale transactions involving Government securition or such espable brack securities which are regulated by Stock Exchanges shall not be prohibited by this saco-clause subject to the condition that risk management parameters are disclused in the Officing Document of the Pension Fund approved by the Commission.
- 7.4.2 Borrowing shall not be resorted to except for meeting withdrawal requests or transfer of funds to other pension fund managers and such borrowing shall not exceed fifteen per cent of the total Net Asset Value of the Pension Land at any time, and shall be repayable within a period of musty days. Any such borrowing shall be immediately communicated to the Commission with details of amount and paymach, plan.
- 7.4.3 The Pension Fund shall not be invested in any security of a company it any director or officer of the Pension Fund Manager owns more than five per cent of the total nominal amount of the securities issued, or, collectively the directors or officers of the Pension Fund Manager own more than ten per cent of those securities.
- 7.4.4 Except where it is necessary to protect its investment, the Pension Fund Manager shall not seek to acquire a controlling interest in any enterprise in which it has invested of has any other interest, which would give it primary responsibility for management.

M m

PA-7

# 7.5 RETIREMENT OR REMOVAL OF PENSION FUND MANAGER

- 3.5.1 The Pension Fund Manager may retire at any time after issuing a three mainths' notice to the Participants about its intention, with the prior approval of the Commission under internation to the Trustee.
- The Trustee may with the prior approval of the Commission remove the Pension Fund Manager if the Pension Fund Manager has contravened the provisions of this Deed in any material respect and has failed to rectify the contravention within (1) 30 days from the date of perification in writing, under infimumion to the Commission or (2) such other period as may be specified by the Commission, in respect of the subject contravention. Provided that such notice shall not be considered as an admission of contravention on part of the Pension Fund Manager who shall have the right to defend such notice or consequent action.
- 75.3 The Pension Fund Munager will stand revived immediately in case of the following events and no notice is required to be served. All the other provisions relating to audit and approvals as mentioned licerar shall be applied accordingly.
  - a. A receiver re-appointed over any of the assets of the Pension Fund Minagor
  - The Pension Fund Manager goes into Equidation (other than voluntary figurdation on terms previously agreed to with the Trustee for purpose of reconstruction and annulgamation).
- 7.5.4 If the Commission is of the opinion that the Pension Fund Manager has contravened any provision of the Rules, or has otherwise neglected in faced to comply with any order or direction of the Commission or with any requirement of the Rules or has failed or neglected to carry out its diffuse to the satisfaction of the trustee or the Commission as the case may be, and considers that it would be in the interest of the Participants so to do, the Commission on its own motion or on the report of the trustee by order in writing may numediately
  - a. cancel or suspend the registration of the Pention Fund Manager.
  - b. remove the Pension Fund Managar managing the Pension Fund.
  - c Issue appropriate orders to the Pension Fund Manager
  - d. order compensation to be paid to the Partis spanis.
  - e impose line; or
  - f take any combination of the above mentioned actions.

The Commission may cancel the registration of the Pension Fund Manager or impose fine on it if in the opinion of the Commission, the performance of the Pension Fund Manager is below and the investment return in the Sub-Funds during any particular year is below the specified benchmark.

If the registration of the company as a Pension Fund Manager is cancelled under as mentioned above; the Commission shall appoint with consent of the Trustee another Pension Fund Manager for the Pension Fund according to the provisions of this deed and the Rules and the Pension Fund Manager whose Registration has been cancelled shall not be eligible to be registered as a Pension Fund Manager again.

- 7.5.7 The removal of Pension Fund Manager and appointment of a new pension fund manager shall always require the prior approval of the Commission.
- 7.5.8 Upon a new pension fund manager being appointed, the Pension Fund Manager will take immediate steps to deliver all the documents and records pertaining to the Trun to the new pension fund manager and shall pay all stury storate to the Trustee.
- 7.5.9 Upon its appointment the new pension fand manager shall exercise all the powers and enjoy all rights and shall be subject to all daties and obligations of the Pension Fund Manager here under as fully as though such new pension fand manager had originally been a party hereto.
- 7.5.10 If so directed by Commission the Pension Fund Manager shall not receive any Contributions from any of the Participants or make any other transaction on account of the Pension Fund as from the date of issue of such onnee as referred above.
- 7.5.11 The Trustee shall ensure that accounts of the Pension Fund till the day of the appointment of the new Pension Fund Manager are ambied by the Auditors of the fund and the malifereport is submitted, within one month time from the date of such appointment to the Commission and the Trustee. The Trustee with the prior approval of the Commission shall decide the cost of such interior audit.





- The Trustee shall comply with the provisions of this Deed and the Roles, for any acr or inatter to be done by it in the performance of its dunes and such acts or matters may also be performed on behalf of the Trustee by any officer or responsible official of the Trustee or by any nomines or agent appointed by the Trustee in consultation with the Pension Fund. Manager: Provided that the Trustee shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of all persons to whom it may delegate any of its datties, as I these were its own acts and omissions and shall account to the Trust for any love in value of the Trust Property where such loss has been caused by negligence of any reckless or willful act and or omission of the Trustee or any of its directors, officers, numinees or agents.
- The Trustee shall exercise all the diligence and vigilance in carrying out its duties and in 762 protecting the interests of the Participants. The Trustee shall not be under any liability on account of anything done or not done by the I matee in good faith in accordance with or in pursuance of my request of the Pension Land Manager, provided that the Trustee's actions and the Pension Fund Manager's requests are not in conflict with the provisions of this Deed in the Rules. Whenever pursuant to any provision of this Dead any certificate notice. direction, instruction or other communication is to be given by the Pension I and Manager to the Trustee: the Trustee may accept as sufficient evidence thereof a document seemed or purporting to be signed on behalf of the Pension Fund Manager, by any person whose signature the Trustee is for the time being authorized in writing by the Pension (and Manager to accept Sub-Reg
- 7.6.7 The Imstee shall
  - take into its castody or under its control all the property of the Pension Fund and hold it in trust for the Participants in accordance with the applicable law, the Rules and the provisions of the Constitutive Documents, and the cash and register aftir assets shall be registered in the name of, or to the order of the I matee,
  - be liable for any loss caused due to its willful act or omission, or that of its agent or delegate in relation to custody of assets or any investment forming part of the property of the pension fund
  - be liable for the act and omission of the lender and its agent in relation to assets forming part of the property of the Penson Fund and, where borrowing is undertaken for the account of the Pension Fand, such assets may be registered in the lender's name or in that of a nominee appointed by the lender
  - emaire that the issue, redemption and cancellation of Units are carried out in accordance with the prayerons of the Rules and the Constitutive Documents of the Pension Fund.
  - ensure that the methods adopted by the Pension Fund Manager in calculating the values of the Units of each Sub-Fund of the Pension Fund are adequate and that the Net Asset Value is calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Constitutive Documents or as specified by the Commission:
  - carry out the instructions of the Pension Fund Manager in respect of investment Policy. unless they are in conflict with the provisions of the Constitutive Documents.
  - ensure that the investment policy prescribed by the Commission from time to time and the Borrowing lumbations set out in the Trust Deed, the Rules and other conditions under which the ABI. Pension Find was authorized are complied with:
  - issue a report to be included in the annual report to be sent to Participants whether in the Frustee's opinion, the Ponsion Lund Manager has in all material respects managed the Pension Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Constitutive Documents, and if the Pension Fund Manager has not done so, the respects in which it has not done so and the steps which the Trustee has asken in respect thereof.
  - ensure that Littles are not allocated until Contributions have been received.
  - shall obtain and maintain replication of all the records of the Purticipants maintained by the Pension Fund Manager or the Registrar, as the case may be, and shall keep the records updated on fortinghtly basis;
  - ensure that the Pension Fund Manager has specified a criteria in writing to provide for a diverse panel of brokers at the time of offering of a pension fund or for any subsequent change:
  - ensure that the Pension Fund Manager has been diligent in appointing brokers and shall not enter, on behalf of a pension fund, into transactions with any broker that exceed Fifteen per cent of the commission payable by a pension fund in any one accounting year.

- Provided that the restriction shall not apply to transactions relating to money market instruments to debt securities
- in Immediately inform the Commission if any action of the Pension Fund Managercontravenes any provision of the Ordinance, these rules, constitutive document, affering document, gardefines, codes, circulars, directives or any other applicable laws, and
- it comply with the directions of the Commission given in the interest of the participants
- 7.6.4 The Trustee shall, from time to time appoint, remove or replace one or more Custodian(a) as an agent for performing the Custodian Function at one or more locations, on terms and conditions to be agreed between the Custodian and the Trustee and approved by the Pension Fund Manager.
- 7.6.5 The Prustee shall make available or ensure that there is made available to the Pension Fund Manager such information as the Pension Land Manager may reasonably require from time to time in respect of the Trust Property and all other matters relating to the Trust.
- The Trustee shall be entitled to require the Anditors to provide such reports as may be agreed between the Trustee and the Pension Fund Manager as may be considered necessary to facilitate the Trustee in issuing the certification required under the Rules. The Frustee shall endeavon to provide the certification of the earliest date reasonably possible in a manner so as to enable the Pension Fund Manager to meet obligation for finalization to the financial statements of the Sub-funds within the required time period.

  The Trustee shall be entitled to require as may be considered necessary to facilities and the considered necessary to facilities and the financial statements of the Sub-funds within the required time period.
- 7.6.7 The Trustee shall promptly provide provies or other forms of power of attorney to the order of the Pension Fund Manager with regards to any soring rights attacking to any lovestments.
- The Commission may, it it is satisfied that it is necessary and expedient so to do in the interest of the Participants, or in the interest of the capital market and public, by an order in writing, give such directions to the Proace which are examined to unlose the Rules including but not limited to making arrangements for safe custody of assets of the Pension Fund, submission of reports and disclosure of information.
  - The Trustee shall if requested by Pension Fund Manager and may if it considers necessary for the protection of Trust Property or salegoarding the interest of Participants, institute or defend any suit, proceeding, arbitration or sugary or any corporate or shareholders action in respect of the Trust Property of any part thereof, with full powers to sign, swear, verify and submit pleading and affidavits, to file documents, to give evidence, to appoint and temose counsel and to do all incidental acts, things, and deeds through the Trustee's authorized iterators and officers. All costs, charges and expenses (including reasonable legal fees) incurred in instituting or defending any such action shall be borne by the Trust and the Trustee shall be indemnified against all such costs, charges and expenses, provided that, no such intermity shall be available in respect of any action taken against the Trustee for negligence or breach of fidherary datas in connection with its duties as the Trustee and this Deco or the Rules.
- 76.10 None of the Trustee, the Custodian (if Trustee has appointed another person as Custodian), the Pension Fund Manager or any of their Connected Persons shall self or purchase or deal in the sale of any Investment with the Pension Fund save in the capacity of an intermediary.

#### 77 RETIREMENT OR CHANGE OF TRUSTEE

- The Trustee shall not be entitled to refuse voluntarity or otherwise except with the prior approval of the Commission and on appointment of a new trustee and such retirement shall take effect at the same time as the new trustee is appointed.
- In the event of the Trustee desiring to retire, the Pension Fund Manager with the prior written approval of the Commission, within a period of three minitis of the Trustee giving notice of its intention to retire to the Pension Fund Manager shall by a Supplementary Funsi Beed under the seal of the Pension Fund Manager and the Trustee, appoint a new trustee under the provisions of the Rules in place of the retiring Trustee and also provide in such dead for the automatic vesting of all the assets of the Trust in the name of the new trustee. The retirement of the Pension fund that affect at the name time as the new trustee. The retirement of the Supplementary Trust Dond, reflecting this appointment is executed. The Trustee shall ensure that accounts of the Pension Fund till the day of the appointment of the new Trustee are audited by the Auditors of the find and the audit report is submitted, within one mounts time from the date of such appointment, to the Commission, the newly appointed Trustee and the Pension Fund Manager. The Pension Fund Manager with the prior approval of the Commission shall decide the cost of such interim audit.

ue.

769

- 7.3 If the Trustee goes into liquidation totherwise than for the purpose of amalgamation of reconstruction on terms previously agreed to with the Pension Fund Manager For ceases to carryon tusiness of trusteeship or a receiver of the undertaking is appointed or it becomes ineligible to act as a trustee of the Trust under the provisions of the Rules, the Pension Fund Manager shall with prior approval of the Commission by instrument in writing remove the Trustee from its appointment under this fixed and shall by the same or some other instrument in writing simultaneously appoint as Trustee some other company or corporation according to the provisions of the Rules and this Deed in the new tripage.
- The Commission after giving thirfy days notice, may remove the Trustee by order an writing on grounds of any material default or non-compliance with the provisions of the Rules or this Dead negligence of as daties or incompetence in performing its daties or if the Commission is of the opinion that the Trustee has otherwise neglected or tailed to comply with any order or direction of the Commission and considers that it would be in the interest of the Participants so to do: provided that such notice shall not per se be regarded as an admission of contraventian on part of the Trustee who shall have the right to defend such notice or action.
- The Pension Fund Manager may also remove the Trustee with the prior approval of the late of the fit Commission after giving three months notice if the Pension Fund Manager feels that the Frustee is charging a remineration that is not comparable to the market norm and it would be in the interest of the Participants to appoint another invoice for the purpose, if the Pension Final Manager based on a fron quototion or offer received from an alternatuinstitution (qualified to be appointed as trustee of a pension (and) determines that the remuneration being paid to the Trustee is not comparable to the market norm and that for this reason, it would be in the interest of the Participants in appoint another trustee on such favorable terms, it will usue a thirty days' notice of removal of the Trustee on this ground However after receiving such notice from the Pension Fund Manager, the Turstee shall have the option to continue as Trustee of the Fund on such favorable terms offered by the alternate institution or is retire as Trustee of the Fund and notify the Pension fund Manager accordingly. The change of Trustee will become effective with the Commission's approval. once the newly appointed trustee takes charge of all duties and responsibilities and appoint another trustee; provided that such notice shall not per su be regarded an admission of contravention on part of the Trustee who shall have the right to defend such notice of
  - Upon the appariment of a new trustee the Trustee shall immediately deliver all the documents and records to the new trustee and shall transfer all the Trustee and make payments to the new trustee and make payments to the new trustee of all sum the from the Trustee.
  - The new trusted shall exercise all the powers and enjoy all rights and shall be subject to all duties and obligations of the trustee herounder as fully as though such new trustee had originally been a party hereto as tituace of the Pension Fund
- 7.7.8 Notwithstanding the removal or resignation of the Trustee and its subsequent discharge from its duties under this Deed and the Rules, the Trustee shall remain entitled to the benefit under the terms of this Deed till the removal or resignation of the Trustee is effective without prejudice to the Trustee's responsibility or obligation to liquidate any hability for which the Trustee may have become hable under this Deed and, or the Rules.

#### DEED BINDING ON EACH PARTICIPANT

The terms and conditions of the Roles and this Head and any Supplementary Trust Deed shall be banding on each Participant as if he she has been party to this Deed and so to be bound by Deed a provisions and each Participant by summe the Prescribed Application Form authorizes and requires the Trustee and the Pension Fund Manager to do as required of them by the provisions of this Roles and the terms of this Deed and the Roles.

#### UNITS TO RANK PART PASSE

- 7.9.1 All Units, including the Core Units, and fractions thereof represent an undivided share in the pertinent Sub-Funds of the Fund rank part passar as to their rights in the Net Assets and currings of such Sub-Fund and shall not be tradable or transferable. Each Participant has a beneficial interest in the Sub-Fund proportionate in the Units held by such Participant in such Sub-Fund. Units of each Sub-Fund shall be issued in registered, un-certificated form.
- 7.9.2 Seed Capital Units subscribed by the Seed Investors shall be offered and issued at the Pair Value and shall not be redeemable transferable or tradable for a period of three years from the date of issue or as may be determined by the Commission. Such restriction and as termination date shall be emered into the Register and shall be noted on any Certificate issued in respect of such Units.

#### THE PARTICIPANTS RANKING PART PASSE.

The Trustee shall hold and stand possessed of the Trust Property that may from time to time hereafter he vested in the Trustee upon trust for the benefit of the Participants ranking pariposon once so, according to the number of Units of Sub-Funds held by each Participant in the pertinent Sub-Fund. Similarly with respect to any fonds field in bank account(s) pending ultimate disposal all Participants whose funds are held in such bank account(s) shall rank pair passes made or according to their balance.

#### THE TRUSTEE TO REPORT TO PARTICIPANTS

- 7.11.1 The Trustee shall report to the Participants on all matters provided in the Rules and this Deed. In particular, the Trustee shall issue a report to the Participants to be included in the annual report to be sent to the Participants at any frequency prescribed by the Commission a statement on stating whether in the Trustee's opinion, the Pension Fund Manager has in all material respects managed the Pension Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Rules and this Deed and the Rules and if in the Trustee's opinion the Pension Fund Manager has not done so, the Trustee's report shall describe the respects in which the Pension Fund Manager has not done so and the steps, which the Trustee has taken in respect thereof.
- The Trustee shall be entitled to require the Auditors to procide such reports as may be considered necessary to facilitate the Trustee in issuing the certification required under the Rules. The Trustee shall endeavor to provide the certification at the earliest thate reasonably possible.

#### 112 TRUST ARRANGEMENTS

### 7.12 | Primary Functions:

tob-Steniostrar-II

- a Fund Management The Pension fund Manager has the responsibility to take all investment decisions in relation to the Pension Fund within the framework of the Rules. Prescribed Investment Policy, and the Trust Deed.
- b Control over Assets The Trunce has the responsibility for being the nominal owner for the sale custody of the assets of the Fund on behalf of the beneficial owners (the Paracipinus), within the framework of the Rules and Trust Dood.

Participant Records—The Pension Fund Manager has the responsibility to maintain Participants' records and for this purpose it may appoint a Registrar, responsible for maintaining Participants' records and providing related services. The Registrar shall carry out the responsibility of mountaining Participants records, issuing statements of account representing investment of the Participants in the Fund, and all other related activities.

Record Keeping - The Pension Fund Manager has the primary responsibility for all record keeping and tot producing financial reports from time to time in relation to the Pension Fund However, the Trustee has the responsibility to ensure fundly delivery to the Pension Fund Manager of statements of account and transaction advices for banking and custodial accounts in the name and inder the control of the Trustee. The Pension Fund Manager shall provide the Trustee inhindered access to all records relating to the Lund.

- Participant Services The Penson Fund Manager has the responsibility to facilitate the Participants in make Contributions and in redeem the balance in the Individual Penson Accounts and to make adequate arrangements for receiving and processing applications in tils regard.
- Distribution the Person Fund Manager study from time to limit appoint suitable parties as Distributors under attention to the Commission and the Trustee. The Distributors shall receive applications for Compilation and withdrawal from the Participants.
- E. Sales Agents The Pension Fund Manager shall, at the own responsibility, from time in time appoint Sales. Agents to assist it in promoting sales.

### 7.12.2 Administrative Arrangements:

The Trustee shall have all the obligations entitied to it under the Rules and Trust Deed establishing the Fund. However, the Trustee shall in addition to the aforesaid obligations, facilitate the Pension Fund Manager's business in the following manner:

- a. Attorney(s) and Point Persones) The Trustee shall, under infination to the Commission, nominate one or note of its officers to act as attorney(s) for performing the Trustee's functions and for ingracting with the Pension Lind Manager.
- by Custodiants). The trustee shall act as Custodian for securities forming part of the Frust-Property for which custody services are available with the Trustee. For other securities forming part of the Trust Property, the Trustee draff parks appropriate arrangements with our

CH

or more Casodians for custody of sociarties in which investment may be made on behalf of the Fund. The Trustee shall provide costodial services for Trust Property to the extent others Costodiants) cannot be identified for this purpose.

#### 7 12.3 Bank Accounts

- In Trustee shall, at the request of the Pension Fund Manager from time to time, open separate Bank Accounts titled "CDC- trustee ABI Pension Fund for the Pension Fund and each Sub-Fund for, inter abit (i) receipt of proceeds of Seed Capital Finits and subsequent Confributions into the Pension Fund, this credit of proceeds realized on account of any transfer or withdrawal at at before retirement of re-allocation in relation to Individual Pension Accounts, and this withdrawals from Approved Income Payment Plans for the Pension Fund.
- b. The Bank Accounts referred to in clause "a" of 7.12.5 small be opened by the Trustee at such branches of Banks approved by the Pension Fund Manager having minimum investment grade entity rating awarded by a credit rating agency approved by the Commission and as such locations (including outside Pakistan) as determined by the Pension Fund Manager, subject to compliance with Applicable Laws and after obtaining all necessary Approvals as may be required from time to time.
- c. Notwithstanding mything in this Trust Deed, the beneficial ownership of the balances in the Bank Accounts opened by the Trustee under clause in set 7.12.3 shall year at all times in the Participants collectively.

### 7/12.4 Transactions Relating to the ABL Pension Fund:

The Trustee shall authorize and facilitate the provision to the Person Fund Manager of daily statements of accounts for all the Bank Accounts being appeared by the Trustee as a continue of the ABI Penson Fund.

# 1 2.5 Transactions Relating to Investment Activity/ Portfolio Management

- The Pension Fund Manager shall, from time to time, advise the Frustee of the settlement instructions relating to any investment disinvestment transactions emered into by it any behalf of the Frust. The Pension Fund Manager shall ensure timely delivers of the settlement instructions, and that the same me complete and acquiring so us to facilitate timely settlement, and the Frustee shall ensure that the settlement is handled in a promptly and in accordance with such instructions in the extent that they do not contravene the requirements of the Rules and this Frust Deed.
  - The Frostee shall ensure that where applicable, payments against his estiments are made against delivery and vice versu.
- Property any notices, reports of other documents issued by the issuers of securities, recipients of any of the fourt funds (as deposits, refunds distribution of dividends, theometrofits, repayment of capital or for any other reasons, any depositors, an intermediaty or agent in any mansaction or received from any court, government regulator stock or other exchange or any other parts having any courts government regulator stock or other exchange or any other parts having any courts government regulator.
- d. The Pension Fund Manager shall also advise the Trustee on a daily basis of the details of amounts to be paid from the respective individual Pension Accounts to respective fractionams against withdrawal requests. Such payments shall be effected by the frustee out of the respective accounts of the Suc-Linds of the Fund by way of transfer of the appropriate autounts to the designated bank accounts of the Participants.
- The Perodon Fund Manager shall also advise the Trustee on a daily basis of the details of amounts to be transferred to the Sub-Fund.
- 1 The Trustee shall pay to the Pension Fund Manager's order such sums not of the Frontsend Fee that is specified in Trust Dood establishing the Fund, if any, as being payable out of the Contributions.
- g. The Trustee shall also, if so required by the nature of such notices of deeds mentioned in the foregoing clause, act in a manner that is in the best interest of the Trust Such action shall melade legal action it called for and the Trustee shall be entitled to recover any legal costs reasonably occurred from the Trust.
- h. The Pension Fund Manager shall provide the Trustee with regular reports indicating dividends, other forms of income or inflows, and my rights or warrants relating to the Investments that me due to be recurved. The Trustee shall report back to the Pension Fund Manager any such amounts or warrants that are received on such accounts from time to time.

Tuce\_

1. The Trustee shall provide proxics or other forms of powers of attorney to the order of the Pension Final Manager with regard to any sorting rights attaching to any Investment.

# 1126 Voting Rights on Trust Property

- a. All rights of voting attached to any Trist Property shall be exercisable by the Pension Fund Manager on behalf of the Trustee and it shall be entitled to exercise the smal rights in what it may consider to be the best interests of the Participants and may retrain at its own discretion from the exercise of any voting rights and the Trustee or the Participants shall not have any right to interfere or complain.
- b. The Trustee shall upon written request by the Pension Fund Manager from time to time execute and deliver or cause to be executed or delivered to the Pension Fund Manager in their nominees powers of attorney or proxies authorizing such attorneys and proxies to vote consent or otherwise our m respect of any Investment in such form and in favor of such persons as the Pension Fund Manager may require to writing. The word—core used in this sub-clause shall the deemed to include not only a vote at a meeting but the right to deed or appoint directors, any consent to an appearant of any arrangement scheme or resolution or any alteration in or abandonment of any rights attaching to any investment and the right to requisition or Join till a requisition to convene any meeting or to give notice of any resolution or to circulate any statement.
- c. The Trustee shall forward to the Pension Fund Manager within six shars of receipt of all notices of meetings and all reports and circulars received by the I rustee as the registered holder of any Investment.
- All regord related to voting rights stated in clause (c) shall be maintained by the Pensian Fund Manager at its registered office in such manner as may be decided by the Pensian Fund Manager in consultation with the Trustee of as be required under the Rules or by the Commission from time to time.

# 1/13 BASE CURRENCY

The currency of transaction of the Pension Fund is the Pakiston Ropee and the Pension Fund of a exManager, the Trustee or any Distributor are not obliged to transact the resource or redemption of the
Linits in any other currency and shall not be held table, save as may be specifically undertaken by the
Pension Fund Manager, after the approval from the Commission of the Scate Bank of Pakistan, as the
case may be, and after fulfilling the foreign exchange regulations for receipt in payment in any ather
currency or for any obligations arising there from

#### SUMITED LIABILITY

Participant is not hable to make any further payments after he she has paid the Net Asset Value of his her Units of Sub-Funds and no further hability can be imposed on Participants in respect of Units they hold.

#### TIS LOSSES

In case any Sub-Fund sustains losses (other than losses due to willful or gross negligent act on part of the Pension Fund Manager or the Truster), such losses shall be charged to the pertinent Sub-Fund and not to the entire Pension Fund or other Sub-Funds.

#### "16 CLAIMS

by the event of any claim(s) being assed against the Pension Land, such claims if found to be temble by the Pension Fund Manager or any court or lawful authority shall be serried out of such components of the Trust Property which relates to the partinent Substandor to which such claim(s) may relate us.

#### 8 DEALING, SUSPENSION, AND DEFERBAL OF DEALING

# 3.1 TEMPORARY CHANGE IN THE METHOD OF DEALING 'OR' SUSPENSION OF DEALING.

Under the circumstances mentioned in the Offernia Document, the Pension Land Manager may request the Trustee to approve a temporary change in the method of dealing in Units of all or any of the Sub-Funds. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Pension Land Manager may at any stage with the consent of the Trustee and the prior approval of the Commission, suspend the dealing of Units and for such periods it may so decide. Such suspension shall be immediately communicated to the Participant through publication in the newspaper in which the duity NAV of the Sub-Funds are published.

**\$2** SUSPENSION OF FRESH ISSUE OF UNITS

The Pension Fund Manager may with consent of the Emistee and mader infimation to the Commission, at any time subject to the Rules, suspend the instance of fresh Units in relation to such Contributions; provided min any such suspension shall not affect making of Contributions by the existing Participants. The Pension Fund Manager shall announce the details of exemptions at the time a suspension of fresh issue or announced. The Pension Fund Manager shall announce that immediately notify the Commission and the Trustee if dealing in Units of all or any of the Sub-Funds is suspended and shall also have the fact published, immediately following such decision in any one of the newspapers in which the Fund's prices are normally published. And the same shall be displayed at all the distribution and sales points in a clear and visible manner.

If the Pension Fund Manager is of the view that investment of inflow of substantial funds will be difficult, it may, with the consent of the crustee and prior approval of the Commission, electine at its discretion, opening of new Individual Pension Accounts.

#### 8.3 REFUSAL TO ACCEPT THE CONTRIBUTIONS

The Pension Fund Manager or the Distributor may at any come refuse to accept any Contribution in any of the following cases:

- a. In case the contribution is contrary to the Know-Your-Customer (KYC) rules or policy of the Pension Fund Manager or any other Applicable Lows relating to money laundering that the Pension Fund may be subject to or that the Pension Fund Manager may frame for selfregulation.
- b. In case the contribution is made by an applicant who has not provided a value CNIC or a reliable NICOP Number.
- In case the contribution is contrary to the Applicable Laws of the foreign jurisdiction that the Pension Fund or the Participant or prospective Participant may be subject to or it accepting the contribution may subject the Fund or the Pension Fund Manager to additional regulations under the foreign jurisdiction.
- d. If accepting the contribution would in any case be contrary to the interests of the Pension Fund Manager or the Pension Fund of the Participants; or
- e. It advised by the Commission to do so

# SUSPENSION OF REDEMPTION OF UNITS WITHDRAWAL OF FUNDS

- The Pension Fund Manager may with the consent of the Trustee and with the prior approval of the Commission suspend withdrawal from any of the Sub-Funds, subject to the Rules at anytime during
- Extraordinary circumstances including war (declared or otherwise) natural disasters, a major brenkdown in law and order breakdown of the communication system, closure of one or more Stock Exchanges on which my of the Securities invested in by the Pension Fund are listed, closure of banking system or strikes or other events that render the Pension Fund Manager or the Distributors unable to function:
- 6 The existence of a state of attairs, which in the opinion of the Pension Fund Manager constitutes an emergency as a result of which disposal of any Investment would not be reasonably practicable or might seriously promites the interests of the Pension Fund or of the Participants
- Break down in the means of communication normally conflowed in determining the price of any Investment, or
- d. When reuntiance of money cannot be carried out in manufable time and if the Pennon-Fund Manager is of the view that it would be detrumented to the remaining Participants to redeem Units at a price so determined in accordance with the Net Asset Value (NAV).
- e. execution of redemption of times on any Business Day would result or more than ten percent (10%) of the issued Units of any sub-Fund being redeemed, provided that any suspension or agreeral of redemption of Units shall not affect any Approved Income Payment Plans.
  - The Pension Fund Manager may announce, with the consent of the Trustee and with the prior approval of the Commission, a suspension or deferral of withdrawal and such a measure shall betaken to protect the interest of the Participants in the event of extraordinary arcumstances or in the event withdrawal fequests accumulate in excess of ten (10) per cent of the Units of the pertinent Sub-Fund in issue or ten (10) per cent of the pertinent Sub-Fund's NAV. In the event of a large number of withdrawal requests recommissing, the requests may be processed in a Oneior System and under extreme circumstances the

tare.

化4二

32 Mm

Cypu

Pension Fund Minager may decide to windup the Pension Fund by transferring the assets and records to another Pension Fund Maureer with the Prior approval of the Commission.

8.4.5 Such suspension or queue system shall end on the day following the first Business Day on which the conditions giving rise to the suspension or queue system shall in the opinion of the Pension Lund Manager base ceased to exist and to other condition under which suspension or queue system is authorized under the Deed exists. In case of suspension and thyoking of a queue system and end of suspension and queue system the Pension Fund Manager shall immediately notify the Commission and the Trustee and publish the same in news paper in which prices of Sah-Funds me manually published.

#### 85 QUEUE SYSTEM

- 8.5.1 In the event before retirement withdrawal requests on any Business Day exceed ten (10) percent of the Units of any Sub-Funds in issue, the Pervion Fund Manager may invoke a queue system hereby requests for withdrawal shall be processed on a first come first served basis for up to ten (10) percent of the Units of such Sab-Fund in issue. Where it is not practical to determine the chromodogical ranking of any requests in comparison to other received on the same Business Day, such requests shall be processed on a proportional basis proportionate to the size of the requests.
- 8.5.2 The Pension Fund Manager shall proceed to self adespute assets of the pertinent Sub-Fund and/or arrange borrowing as it deems fit in the best interest of the Participants and shall determine the NAV to be applied to the withdrawal requests based on such action.
- 8.5.3 The requests in excess of the ten (40) percent shall be treated as withdrawal requests qualifying for being processed on the next Business Day at the NAV or be determined for such withdrawal requests.
- 8.5.4 If the earried over requests and the fresh requests received in the next business Day will exceed ten (10) percent of the Umb or resuc, these shall once again the treated on first-come-first served basis and the process for gamerating liquidity and determine the NAV shall be repeated and such procedure shall continue till such time the mustapiding withdrawal requests come down to a lovel below ten (10) percent of the Umbs at the pertinent Sub-Fund then in issue.

# NO MONEY SHOULD BE PAID TO ANY INTERMEDIARY

The money (cash) should be paid by the Participant to any intermediary. All the Contributions and Expenses made by to the Participants, as the case may be, shall be through a banking channel by using appropriate instruments. Furthermore, all payments shall be made to and received from the Fund's second only.

### DISTRIBUTION RESTRICTION POLICY

Distribution of dividend shall not be allowed under the Rules.

#### 11 TAXATION

All the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and other applicable laws shall apply to the Fund, incomes of the fund and the Participants, the dentils of the existing tax treatment may be included in the Offerrag Document of the Pension Fund.

#### 12 REPORTS AND ACCOUNTS

# 12 | FUND ACCOUNTS

Pension Fund Manager shall prepare Financial Acquiring and Reports required under Rules for ABL

Pension Fund including Sub-Funds as prescribed by the Commission from time to time.

# 122 ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD

- 12.2.1 The Annual Accounting Period shall commence on 1st July and shall and on 30th June of the succeeding calendar year.
- Accounting Date shall be the 30th day of time in each year and any interior dates at which the financial statements of the Fund are drawn up. Provided, however, that the Pension Fund Manager may with the consent of the Trustee and after obtaining approval of the Commission and the Commissioner of Income Tax charge such date to any other date.
- Accounting Period shall be the period ending on and including an Accounting Date and commencing (in case of the first widt period) in the date on which the full amount of Seed Capital is received and in any other case from the end of the preceding Accounting Period

23 PERIODIC REPORTS TO BE SENT TO PARTICIPANTS

Kw.

Coffee

- (2.3.) Annual report and quarterly reports will be prepared and sent to the Participants. For details please refer Obligations of Pension Fund Manager clause 7.2.2 (c) and (f)
- 12.3.2 The balance store and income and expanditure accounts mentioned above shall be propared separately for each Sub-) and and in addition thereto consolidated accounts shall be prepared for the entire Fund.

#### 12.4 PERIODIC REPORTS TO BE SENT TO COMMISSION

Annual report and quarterly reports will be prepared and sent to the Commission. For details please refer Obligations of Pension Fund Manager clause 7.2.2 (c) and (f)

#### 13 WARNINGS

IF YOU ARE IN ANY DOUBT ABOUT THE CONTENTS OF THIS DOCUMENT. YOUSHOULD CONSULT YOUR STOCK BROKER, BANK MANAGER, LEGAL ADVISOR, FAX ADVISOR OR OTHERHNANCIAL ADVISOR THE PRICE OF THE UNITS OF THE SUB-FUNDS OF THEABL PENSION FUNDAND THE INCOME FROM THEM MAY GODOWN AS WELL AS UP THE PARTICIPANTS ARE ADVISED TO READ THEOTTERING DOCUMENT CARRELLED.

#### 14 TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS

- 14.1 No Pension Fund Manager on behalf of the Pension Fund shall take exposure in any form or invest in debt or equity securities of connect persons or purchase from or self any scenity to any of the Connected Person.
- 14.2 No single connected stockbroker shall account for ten per cent or more of the Pension Fund's brokerage or commission in any one financial year of the Pension Fund. Provided that the Commission may in each case on ments, parmit the ten per cent to be exceeded if the connected broker offers advantages to the Pension Fund nor available elsowhere.
- 14.3 Neither the Trustee or the Custodian (if Trustee has appointed another person as Custodian) nor the Pension Fund Manager shall self or purchase any Investment with the Pension Fund save in the capacity of intermediary or in the normal course of business.
- All cash forming part of the ABI. Pension Fund assets shall be deposited with the Trustee or the Custodian, which is a Bank, return shall be paid on the deposit by such Trustee or Custodian at a rate that is not lower than the rate offered by the said Bank to depositors its similar durating

#### 45. LEGAL STATUS OF THE UNITS

- All Units, including the core thins, and fractions thereof represent an undivided share in the pertinent Sub-Funds of the Fund rank part passo as to their rights in the Net Assets and carnings of such Sub-Fund and shall not be tradable or transferable. Each Participant has a heneficial interest in the Sub-Fund proportionate to the Units field by such Participant or such Sub-Fund. Units of each Sub-Fund shall be issued in registered, an ecertificated form.
- 15.2 Core Units subscribed by the Seed Investors shall be offered and issued at the Par Value and shall not be tradable; transferable or redeemable for a period of three years from the date of issue or as may be determined by the Commission. The Pension Fund Manager may borrow from any Bank for its working capital requirements and can offer a charge on its entire assets which may include the seed capital units of ABI. Pension Fund if the Pension Fund Manager has subscribed for those Units.

#### 16 DE-AUTHORIZATION, WINDING UP OF THE PENSION FUND

- 16.1 The duration of the Personn Fund shall be perpetual and shall not be wound up byway or iiquidation
- 16.2 If the Pension Fund Manager does not wish to maintain the authorization of the Pension Fund, it shall apply to the Commission to desauthorize the Pension Fund by giving at least three (03) months notice in writing to the Participants, the Trustee and the Commission, subject is conditions of the Rules.
- 16.3 In the event the Pension Fund Manager is of the view that the quantum of redemption requests that have built up shall result in the Sub-Funds. Fund being run down to an unmanageable level or n to of the view that the self-off of assets is likely to result or a significant loss in value for the Participants who are not redeening it may apply to the Commission to desauthorize the Pension Fund. In such an event, the queue system. If already insoked shall cease to apply.
- 16.4 The Pension Fund may also be de-authorized by the Commussion on the grounds provided in the Rules

Tale.

A my Copin

- 16.5 Upon the Pension I and being de-authorized, the Pension Cand Manager shall suspend receiving contributions forthwith from any of the Participants, from the date of issue of the notice under Clauses 16.1, 16.2.46.5 and 16.1 and proceed to transfer all the records of Individual Pension Accounts and books of accounts of the Pension Fund to another pairson fund manager.
- 16.6 The Trustee shall ensure that accounts of the Pension Fund till the day of the transfer to the new Pension Fund Manager are undred by the Auditors of the Fund and the aidit and Trustee report is submitted within one month from the date of such appointment, to the Commission, the new pension fund manager and the trustee (in case of any new appointment). The Trustee with the prior approval of the Commission shall decide the cost of such interim audit.
- Once the Pension Fund has been de-unthorized by the Commission, the Pension Fund Manager may after transferring all the records of Individual Pension Accounts and books of accounts of the Pension Fund to the new pension fund manager, wind my the Pension Fund under the provisions of the Rules and in the court of jurisduction.

# 17 MODIFICATION OF THE CONSTITUTIVE DOCUMENTS

- The Trustee and the Pension Fund Manager using together shall be entitled by a Supplementary frust Deed to modify, after or add to the provisions of this Deed in such manner and to such extent as they may consider expedient for any purpose, subject to 30 days prior notice to the Participants and the subsequent approval of the Commission. If so required Provided that the Trustee and the Pension Fund Manager shall certify in writing that in their opinion such modification, alteration or addition is required pursuant to my amendment in the Rules or to ensure compliance with any fiscal or statutory requirement or to enable the provisions of this Deed to be more efficiently, conveniently or economically managed or otherwise for the benefit of the Participant(s) and that it does not prejudice the interests of the Participant(s) or the Participant(s).
- Where this Deed has been altered or supplemented, the Pensional and Manager shall again notify the Participants and the participating employers immediately by a notice published in a newspaper having wide circulation and by placing the same on its website.
  - The Pension Fund Manager may from time to time with the consent of the Frustag frame such operational procedures for conducting the business of the Trust or in respect of any other matter incidental thereto; provided such operational procedures are not inconsistent with the provisions of the Rules, this Deed or the Offering Document
    - If the Commission grants any relaxations or exemptions of Rules for the Pension Fund, these shall be deemed to be part of this Deed without the need of altering it. However, meases of significant changes, the Commission may require issuance of a Supplementary. Trust Deed from time to time.
- 47.5 Where a change or intendment in the Rules or the Income Lix Ordinance 2001 or any other applicable law or regulation, renders any of the clauses contained in this Decil mellective or in need of unrendment, such clause will automatically stand replaced by the new change or amendment and no modification in this Decil or any Supplemental Decil shall be sequired. However, if the Penson Fund Manager is amending the Decil or any Supplementary Decil for any reason, the Penson Fund Manager may also amend such clauses that have been automatically overwritten and amended due to a change, amendment in the Rules and contact laconic Tax Ordinance, 2001.
- 17.6 If an any time, any chaise of this Deed is and or becomes in whole or in part illegal, invalid or unenforceable under the laws of any applicable jorodiction mather the legality validity and enforceability of the remaining clauses of this Deed nervot, nor the legality, validity or enforceability of such clause under the law of any other prosidetion shall in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

# 8 ARBITRATION IN CASE OF DISPUTES DETWEEN THE PENSION FUND MANAGER AND THETRUSTEE

In the event of any disputes arising out of this i rust Deed between the Pension Fund Manager on the one part and the Trustee on the other part, including as to the respective rights and obligations of the Parties hereto, as well as those relating to the interpretation of the terms and conditions of this trust Deed, the Offering Document and/or the Supplementary Offering Documents, relating to the Lund, the same shall be referred first to the Commission and thereafter, if the dispute still commiss for arbitration by two arbitrators, one to be appointed by the Pension Lund Manager and the other to be appointed by the Trustee. In the event of lack of consensus between the two arbitrators, the immer shall be referred to an impire, in he selected by the two arbitrators before commencement of the reference. The unanimous decision of both the arbitrators or the decision of the impire as the case may be shall be final and binding upon both the Parties. The administrators and the impire dual be selected from amongst, senior partners of renowned law Firms, or senior partners of renowned law Firms, or senior backers, or senior members of any Stock Exchange (who may even be the heads

THE

Km 1 CHm 1

of corporate members of any Stock Exchange). The venue of the arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the Arbitration Act. 1940.

#### 19 DISPUTES BETWEEN THE PARTICIPANTS AND THE PENSION FUND MANAGER

19.1 If any compliant or dispute arises between the any Participant or any of its any nominated survivors, executors, administrators or successors and Pension Fund Manager under this Trus Deed or the Rules, it shall be referred to an authority as provided in the Rules.

#### 20 GENERAL

- 20.1 Any notice required to be served upon a Participant shall be deemed to have been diffy given if sent by post or courier service to or left at his berodders; as appearing in the Register. Any motice so served by post shall be deemed to have been served on the day following that an which the letter containing the same is posted, and in proving such service it shall be sufficient to prove that such letter was properly addressed, stamped and posted.
- 20.2 Any notice or document sent by post of courier service to or left at the registered address-offace. Participant shall notwidestanding that such Participant be then dead or bankrups and whether or not the Trustee or the Pension Fund Manager have notice of bin her death or bankrupse; be deemed to have been duly served and such service shall be deemed a sufficient service on all persons interested (whether jointly with or as claiming through or under him) in the Units registered in favor of that Participant;
- 20.3 A copy of this Deed and of any such Supplementary Trust Deed shall be made available for impection at the respective Head Offices of the Provice and of the Pension Fund Manager at all times during all Biomess Hours and shall be supplied by the Pension Fund Manager to any person on application at a charge mentioned in the Offering Document to be determined from time to time by the Pension Fund Manager, with the prior approval of the Comprission.
- 20.4 In case a general notice is required to be served upon all the Participants, the Trustee of the Pension Fund Manager shall advertise any such notice in any leading daily newspapers in Pakistin having primary circulation in Karachi, Lahore and Edamahad. The cost of issuing and publishing a general notice shall be charged to the Trust.
  - Service of a notice or document on any employer shall be deemed effective service on all the Participants registered through that amployer unless the Participant has given unless to the Pensian Fund Manager that he she is no longer at the employ of that employer.

# 21 CONFIDENTIALITY

The Trustee, the Pension Fund Manager, the Registrat and the Custodian and every director of officer of the said parties who are in any way engaged in the business of the Fund and all persons employed or engaged by the said parties in connection with the business of the Trust shall observe strict confidentiality in respect of all transactions of the Trust its Participants and all matters relating thereto and shall not disclose any information or document which may come to their knowledge or possession in the discharge of his her duties except when required to do so in the ordinary course at performance of his her duties except when required to do so in the ordinary course at performance of his ber duties or by law or it compelled by any court of law or a competent authority.

#### 22 DEFINITIONS

take

Unless the context requires otherwise the following words or expressions used in this Deed, shall have the following meanings respectively assigned to them vie:

- 22.1.) "Accounting Period" means a period ending at and tocholing an Accounting Date and commonsing (in case of the first such period) from the date of recurpt of endine of Socil Capital and (in any other case) from the end of the last Accounting Period, as the case may be
- 22.12 "Account Statement" means statement of transactions in Units of each Sub-fund in the Individual Pension Account of the Participant, containing such information as may be prescribed by the Commission from time to time.
- 22.1.3 "Allocation Schemes" means the allocation schemes offered by the Pension Fund Manager in light of the Prescribed Allocation Policy issued by the commission from time to time.
- 22.1.4 "Annuity" income a series of payments of set frequency
- 22.1.5 "Anniversary Date" means the Business Day following the completion of one full year from the opening of the Individual Pension Account with the Pension Fund Manager and thereafter the Business Day following completion of subsequent one full year.
- 22 1.6 "Approved Annuity Plan" means an Annuity Plan, approved by the Commission under Section 2(3A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 200 M.

- 22.1.7 "Approved Income Payment Plant" means an income payment plan approved by the Commission ander Section 2(31) of the Income Euclideanne, 2001.
- 22.18 "Applicable Law" means any common or customary law, constitutional law any stature regulation, resolution, rule ordinance enactment judgment, order code decree directive notification, clarification, guideline, policy requirement of other governmental restriction and any form or decision of or determination by or interpretation of any of the foregoing (whether or not having the force of law) by any Authority, now or bepeater in effect in each case as amended, re-enacted or replaced to the extent applicable.
- 22.1.9 "Asset Management Company" means a company which has been beensed by the Commission under rule 5 of the Nen-Banking Finance Companies Rules. 2005, to offer investment schemes under trist deeds and to issue redeemantly securities.
- 22.1.10 "Auditors" means a person qualified under the provisions of section 254 of the Ordinance to act as an auditor of a company appointed by the Pension Fund Manager, with the consent of Trustee, as the auditor lot the Pension Lund, who shall be independent of the auditor of the Pension Fund Manager and the auditor of the Trustee, as provided under the Rules However, the Trustee and the Pension Land Manager shall ensure that the auditors are selected from the list of auditors as prescribed by the Commission from time to time for this purpose.
- 22.141 "Authorized Branch or Branches" means those branches of the Distributors authorized by the Pension Fund Manager to perform Distribution Lunctions whose addresses shall be present the Offering Document.
- 22.1/12 "Authorized Investments" means investments, whether listed or otherwise transacted issued or traded inside or outside Pakostan and as permissible under the Rules or under the Investment Policy prescribed by the Communition:
- 22.1.13 "Bank" means my Scheduled Bank as defined under the State Bank of Pakastan Act, 1956 and licensed to carry on banking business and shall include a bank incorporated outside Pakastan and carrying on banking business in Pakastan as a Scheduled Bank.
- 22/1/14 "Bank Accounts" means those accounts) opened and arantamed for the Trust by the Trustee at Banks, the beneficial ownerships in which shall sest in the Participants.
- 22.1.15 "Business Day" means a day touch Business Hours thereoft when Banks and Stock Exchanges are open for business in Pakastan and for which Pension Fund Manager is open for business.
- Q2.1.16 "Rusiness Hours" means period in a Business Day as determined by Pension Fund.

  Manager from time to time
  - 17 "Commission" means Securities and Exchange Commission of Paktern esophished under the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakestan Act 1997(X) II n(1997)
  - 18 "Connected Person" shall have the same meaning as assigned in the Rules.
  - (19 "Constitutive Document" means the principal document governing the formation of the Pension Func, and includes this Trust Deed and any supplemental trust deed of the Pension Fund and all indicital agreements.
- 22.1.20 "Contribution" means an amount as may be community determined by an individual phyable at any frequency to one or more Pension Fund Managers and hold in one or more individual Pension Accounts of a Participant, subject to any specified minimum fault prescribed by the Pension Fund Manager.
- 22.1.23 "Core Units" means units issued to the seed Capital Investors
- 27.1.72 "Costodian" means a Bank, the Central Depository Company, or any other Depository for the time being appointed by the Trustee to hold and profess the Trust Property or any part thereof as custodian on behalf of the Trustee, the Trustee may also itself provide custodial services for the Fund.
- 22.1.23 "Deed" or "Trust Deed" means this broat Deed which is the principal document governing the formation, management or operation of the Fund
- 22.1.24 "Dealing Day" income every Business Day on which dealing in the Pension Fund is conducted as disclosed in the Offering Document, provided that the Pension Fund Manager may with the prior written consent of the Trustee and upon giving not less than One day notice in the newspapers declare any particular Business Day not to be a Dealing Day.
- 22.1.25 "Default Allocation Scheme" means the default asset a location scheme as determined by the Pension Fund Minager in fight at the Prescribed Allocation Policy, allocating the Contributions received from the Participants between the Sub-Funds, as deemed fit, for those Participants who have not selected any Allocation Setteme.

Jake.

- 22.1.26 "Distributor(s)" means Company (ses), Fungar Sole Proprietorship Concerns, individuals or Bankt's appointed by the Pension Fund Manager under infimation to the Trustee for performing any or all of the Distribution Functions and shall include the Pension Fund Manager uself. I'm performs the Distribution Functions.
- 25 1 27 "Distribution Functions" means the functions will regard to
  - a Receiving applications for combining to the Pension Fund.
  - h Interfacing with and providing services to the Participants including receiving Withdrawal Transfer applications, conversion intrices and applications for change of address for immediate transmission to the Pension Fund Manager or the Registrar as appropriate.
  - a Acknowledging receipt by delivering customer cops in (espect of (a) and (b) above, and
  - d. Accounting to the Pension Fund Manager for (i) monies received from the applicants when the Contributions, (ii) payments made to the Participants on withdrawal from Individual Pension Account; and (iii) expenses incurred in relation to the Distribution Functions.
- 22.1.29 "Exposure" includes locility and subscription to an insestment in equity recurries, debt instruments or sectables, unit or certificates or shares of a collective investment scheme money-market placements, deposits, certificates of deposits. CFS, forward continous, derivatives and creatit cards but does not undide.
  - offigation under letters of credit and letters of guarantee to the evtent of each margin held by an NBFC.
  - a facility provided to financial institutions through REPO transpetions with underlying statutory liquidity requirement eligible securities.
- letters of credit established for the import of plant and marchinery, and
- il. deposits of less than narry days:
- 22.1.30 "Facility" includes financing under a system which is based on participation in profit and loss, markup of mark-down in price, here-purchase lease rent sharing, bills of exchange promissory notes or other instruments with or without buy-back arrangement by a seller participation term certificate, musbarika or modaraba certificate, term finance certificate or any other mode, guarantees, indemnities, letters of guarantees, indemnity, letter of grounding any other obligation, whether final based or non-hand based.
- 22.131 "Financial Institution" means o Bank, development (mance institution, Non-Banking Finance Company or Modaraba
- 22.1.32 "Form" means a borm prescribed under the Rules to collect information from the Participants
- 22.1.35 "Formation Cost" means all preformers and floatation expenses of the Fund including expenses in connection with authorization of the Fund and its application for payable to the Commission, execution and registration of the Constitutive Document, issue, legal costs and all expenses incurred during the period leading up to the authorization to a retrimum limit of PKR 750,000 or 0.5% of the total Soul Capital, which ever is less.
- 21.1.34 "Front-end Fee" means the sales charge or commission not exceeding three percent (3%) of the amount of Contributions from Participants
- 22 1 35 "Fund" means AGL Pension Fund or "Trust or "Unit Upst" constituted by this Deed
- 22.1.36 "Fund Property" means the aggregate proceeds of the sale of all linus at NAV after deducting there from Front-end fee, and any expenses chargeable to the Lund, and includes the Investment and all means, profits, shares, securities deposits, right and homes shares each, bank balances, dividends fee, commissions receivables, commissions contracts because privileges and other benefits arising there from and all each and other movable and other assets and properties of every description, whether accrued or accroming for the time being field or deemed to be held upon trust in the Trustee for the benefit of the Unit Haiders pursuant to the Trust Deed and shall include the meaning.
- 22.1.37 "Guidelines" means various guidelines anchoing instructions and hardouts issued by the Commission to be followed or nuplemented by the Pensian Fund Manager, the Trustee and other persons connected with the Fund in relation to various matters under the Rules.
- Manager after retirement enabling withdrawal of the remaining automit, in monthly installments as put the rules.

O PRA

- 22.1.39 "Individual Pension Account" means an individual account of a Participant maintained by the Pension Fund Manager to record his her investment and the Units of the Sub-Funds as issued there against, including appreciations thereo?
- 22.1.40 "Individual Pension Account Number" of a Participant means his her Computerized National Identity Card (CNR) counties fullowed by a hyphen, a two digit suffix denoting the particular Pension Fund and a social number, it my
- 22.1.41 "Investment" means any Authorized Investment forming part of the Fund Property
- 22 [42 "Lifecycle Allocation Scheme" means an Allocation Scheme approved by the Commission, where the percentage allocations to each Sub-Fund will automatically vary based on the age of the Participant.
- 22.143 "Life Insurance Company" means a company registered under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (NXXIX of 2000), to transite! (the insurance business, and includes the State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan).
- 32.1.44 "Net Assets" means the excess of assets over liabilities of the Fund, such excess being compared in the manner as specified under the Rules
- 22.1.45 "Net Asset Value" means per Unit Value of the Sub-Finds arrived at by dividing the Net Assets by the number of Units adistantine. Net Assets being computed in the manner specified under the Rules or as may be specified by the Commission from time to time.
- 22.1.46 "Nomination Deed" is the deed issued by the Court specifying the nominees of the deceased Participant and their respective entitlement.
- 22.1.47 "Offering Document" means a document issued by the Pension Fund Manager with consent of the Tractee and after approval of the Commission and contains the contribution and investment policy and all other information in respect of the Fund, an required by the Rules Guidelines and is circulated to invite offers by the public to invest in the Fund.
- 22 1:48 "Ordinance" means the Companies Ordinance 1984
- 22 1.49 "Par Value" means the First Offer Price of a Unit.
- 22.1.50 "Participant" means any person who has contributed or on whose behalf Contributions are made into one or more pension finds and held in one or more identifiable individual Pension Accounty managed by one or more Pension Fund Managers.
- 22.1.51 "Pension Fund" means a fund made up of Sub-Landa created from the Commutations paid by the Participants and would consist of all the assets for the time being holder deemed to be held by Sub-Funds and includes all income or investment returns thereon but excludes fees, charges and expenses related to the management of the investments of Sub-Lands.
- 22.1.52 "Pension Fund Manager" means in asser management company or a life insurance company dins authorized by the commission to efficaciously manage the contributions made by or on behalf of participants in pension fund and meet such other conditions as may be prescribed from time to time by the commission.
- 22.1.53 "Prescribed Allocation Policy" means the allocation policy as prescribed by the Commission from time to time.
- 22.1.54 "Prescribed Application Form" means a Form approved by the Commission to open an Individual Perssion Account and collect other information from the Participants
- 22 135 "Prescribed Investment Policy" means Investment Policy prescribed by the Commission from time to time rander the Rules
- 22.1.56 "Records" include ledgers day blooks, cash books and all other namuals or magnetic records used in the business of a Pension Fund Manager.
- 22.157 "Register" means the Register of the Participants kept parament to the Rules and this Trust Deed.
- 22.158 "Registrar" means an organization that the Pension Fund Manager may appoint for performing the Registrar Functions and may include a department of the Pension Fund Manager
- 22.1.59 "Registrar Functions" means the functions with regard for
  - a. Maintaining the Register.
  - b. Processing requests for Contribution. Withdrawal Clange of pension finid manager reallocation of unit between the Sub-Funds and Transmission of balance in the Individual Pension Acceptate and requests for recording of honor for according of changes in data with regard to the Partic points to
  - Estaing Account Statements to the Participants;

Jake-

Mond

Coper

- d. Dispatching income distribution advice and or bank transfer immutations
- e. Other functions to be performed as per Registral Agreement, and
- Such other functions as may be required inder the Gordelines on record keeping.
- 22 1 60 "Regulations" means regulations made by the commission under these rules
- 22.1.61 "Retirement Age" means any age between visty and seventy years or twenty-five years since the age of first contribution to a pension fund whichever is earlier or such age as may be prescribed in the Rules from time to time which the Participant selects for retirement, in accordance with the provisions of the Rules.
- 22 1.62 "Retirement Date" means the date on which the retirement of a Participant from the Pension Fund becomes effective.
- 22 1.63 "Rules" mean the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005, as amended from time Q. .
- 22 L64 "Sales Agent" means an Individual. Firm Corporate of other firm) appointed by Jag.

  Pension Fund Manager, at its sole responsibility to identity solicit and assist Paragraphs in Range.

  Range:
- 22 1.65 "Schedule" means the schedule of these rules.
- 22.1.66 "Seed Capital" means the amount invested or arranged by the Pension Fund Manager as initial investment in each Sub-Fund of the Pension Fund. This investment will be kept for a minimum period at three years from the date of investment or as determined to the Commostor.
- 22.1.67 "Seed Capital Investor" means the investor of Seed Capital.
- 22 L68 "Stock Exchange" means any stock exchange registered under the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 (XVII of 1969)
- 22.1.69 "Sub-Fund" preats a collective investment sub-scheme of a specified investment class and/or investment policy set up within the overall Pension Fund. The Trist Property shall be accounted for and segregated with respect to each Sub-Fund.
- 22.1/70 "Supplementary Offering Document" means a document issued by the Pension Fund Manager, with consent of the Trustee after approval of the Commission, describing the new features of the Pension Fund to invite offers by the public to invest in the Fund.
- 22 1.71 "Supplementary Trust Deed" means a sheet registered between the Pension Fund Manager and the Trustee, with approval of the Commission, amending or adding to the Trust Deed, Such Supplementary Trust Deed shall be londing on each Participant, as if he she is party to it and so to be bound by its prayisions.
- 22 1.72 "Tax Year" shall have the same incuming as ascribed under the income Tax Ordinance 2001
- 22.1.73 "Transaction Costs" means the costs memored or estimated by the Pension Land Manager to cover the costs (such as, but not restricted to, Brokerage, Taxes or Levies on transactions etc.) related to the divesting or douvesting activity of the Fund's partfolio, necessitated by treation or cannelly non at Units.
- 22.1.74 "Trust" means a trust established by a ducal under the provisions of the Trusts Act, 1882.
- 22.1.75 "Trustee" means central Depository Company of Pakistan Lumited (CDC) or any other company appointed with approval of the Commission from time to time
- 22.1/76 "Trust Property" means the aggregate proceeds credited in the Pension Fund including the Contribution(s) received and Seed Cupital received from Seed Investors at each Sub-Fund(s) after deducting therefrom or providing there and any applicable from said fee and any other expenses charactable to the Pension Fund including the Sub-Fund, and includes the investments and all moome, profit and other benefits arrang there from and all each bank balances and other assets movable or immovable and property of every description for the time being field or deemed to be held upon trust by the Trustee for the benefit of the Participant pursual. To the Deed.
- 22 1.77 "Trusts Act" ropins Trusts Act 1882 (1) of 1882 (
- 22 1.78 "Unit" means an individed share in a Sub-Fund of the Person Fund.
- 22.1.79 "Unlisted Security" means a security not fixed or aported on a stock exchange
- 22 1.80 "Zakat" has the same meaning as in Zakat and Lalir Oreinauce (XVIII of 1980), 1980.

Words and expressions used but not defined beton that! have the meanings assigned in them in the Ordinance, the Securities and two turns of indinance. 1969, the Insurance ( ) (dinance, 2000, the Rules and the

Jule.

40

Coffee

Non-Banking Finance Companies Rules 2003 Words importing persons include corporations, words importing the masculine gender include the femount gender words importing snigular include plural and words "written" or "in writing include printing outgraving hittography or other means of visible reproduction.

Taile Knd

Coper

Subsitegistra II





